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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in China with full
capabilities in jewellery design, direct stone sourcing,
stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold refining. The
management of the Group is known for its commitment to
quality, and its finished products are visible testaments to that
commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
jewellery production facilities in China. With around 764
skilled workers, our facilities are best known for their quality
and ability to handle diamond cutting works on a wide range
of products.
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Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, Jp
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company"”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the fiscal year 2015, the Group consolidated revenue
recorded a decline of approximately 15.8% from last year
of HK$868.1 million to HK$730.9 million. During the year,
profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$141.6
million, as compared to the profit attributable to owners
of HK$50.6 million in last year. The increase in profit was
mainly due to unrealised fair value gain on the investment
property amounted to HK$333.5 million and reversal of
deferred tax liabilities amounted to HK$76.2 million as result
of impairment loss on mining right, which partially offset
the impairment loss on mining right amounted to HK$304.7
million. The basic earnings per share was HK2.23 cent (2014:
HK0.99 cent).
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During the year under review, the Group’s revenue on
trading of fine jewellery and diamond business recorded
a decrease of approximately HK$133 million or 15.6 %
from approximately HK$848.6 million for the year ended
30 June 2014 to approximately HK$715.6 million for 2015.
Such decrease resulted mainly from a drop in our diamond
polishing business due to the softening of diamond market.
Revenue for jewellery trading increased slightly despite the
continual weakening of global economic environment. In
particular, the consumer confidence in Europe remained
weak, whilst the depreciation of the local currencies had
further dampened the purchasing demand of our customers
in those markets. In USA, the market has improved, but it still
requires time to recover and reach its previous levels. Amidst
such challenges, our Group managed to strengthen our
relationship with customers and acquire more core programs
and key collections. Meanwhile, our Group has also applied
tight control on costs and expenses at all levels in order to
sustain a positive results for the year.

As for property investment, the Group is maintaining two
development projects in Hong Kong and the PRC. In Hong
Kong, the project is located at No. 236-242 Des Voeux Road
Central. About 90% of the reinforcement concrete frame
of the superstructure has now been completed. The project
occupies a site area of approximately 302 sq.m., which
will be developed into a 29-storey high commercial, shop
and retail premises with a gross floor area of approximately
4,515 sg.m. The completion is expected by June 2016. The
board of Directors (the “Board”) considers strategically more
beneficial to partially lease and partially sell certain floors of
the property. Subsequently, a pre-sale press briefing was held
on 26 November 2014. Market responded positively to the
sale of “Continental Place” with formal sale and purchase
agreements signed for three floors. The Board believes that
the proceeds of the sales can be better utilised by the Group
which will positively strengthen liquidity of the Group.
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In PRC, the Group has a 50% interest through a joint
venture holding two parcels of land with a total area of
approximately 18,101 sq.m. and total gross floor area of
approximately 98,881 sg.m. in Yangpu District of Shanghai
(E/8%5EE) . The land parcels is being developed into
an eleven-floored shopping mall with over 500 parking
spaces. The superstructure and the interior decoration of
the property — “Bauhinia Square” are completed. Leasing
activities are very promising with strong momentum, majority
of the units are leased out and we expect a close to full
occupancy for the shopping mall. Selective tenants have
started moving in since August 2015 and soft opening is
targeted by the end of the year.

In mining operation, production was suspended in the
Hongzhuang Gold Mine. All the previously reported gold
resources in the Yuanling mine field had been exhausted. The
preliminary exploration has completed at the north eastern
part of Yuanling site. A potential new vein with promising
grade had been identified during the exploration. Second
phase of exploration to increase the geological confidence
will commence later this year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, while the U.S. continues to be recovering,
economies in the Europe and emerging markets is foreseen
to be uncertain, especially with the slowdown in the
Chinese economy which potentially will raise concerns and
spillover effects into the global economy. In view of such
uncertainties and challenges, it is expected our business
will remain challenging for the rest of the year. To mitigate
those challenges, we will continue to deploy more resources
in sales and marketing and will strategically explore new
opportunities in new markets. The Group will remain focus
in delivering exceptional quality products and services in
order to further cement a stronger relationship with our
customers. For our investment in property, the projects are
progressing well and expect to generate positive revenue
to the Group in the long term once they are completed.
In mining, the management anticipates the second stage
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of exploration will bring positive results to support further
production. In addition, the Group will actively identify and
pursue new businesses and investment opportunities which
could bring potential and long-term value to the Group and
its shareholders.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 30 June 2015, the Group held an equity interest in
Macarthur Minerals Limited ("MMS"”), MMS is an Australian
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada. The
Group holds the interest in MMS for long term investment
and accounted for as a non-current asset as “available-for-
sale financial assets”.

During the year, the fair value of MMS was determined to
be impaired on the basis of significant and prolonged decline
in its fair value below cost. Accordingly, impairment loss
of HK$4,834,000 (2014: HK$2,077,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The impairment loss was considered
to be an exceptional item and did not have any effect on the
Group's cash flows in the financial year.



Annual Report 2015 “F ¥

Chairman’s Statement m FfEHSE

RIREREBR

REBE-_T—HFA=1+HILF
B ARAEEZEB/LEXMGE
EZE SRR HEBER A T;TEP!J
MEAAHSBETHEREMGE I
RizE Bk EMEEKRER T E
AIRIEE18304,707,0008 70 (=
—FE:F) -

%Iﬁ%@ﬁ)ﬁ%izﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%iiﬂ
BOUBERXSGHE H-_F—NO
FRA=THZEERGERE—
BeohEMERzEZ/HARKA
BHBXZMELREHERER
gromatHEERERKRRBR&EN
REYEREFHERAERER
AR A7) FSRK Consulting China
Limited#m il 2 £ firde 5 e &5 A< 9 2
G-

ZRBAESBRRERAEREMRA
PR A & 47 il < BT i 59 5 - SRK
Consulting China LimitedFT 2%k 2
PRZEHEEREATHETEE-
WHETHNERGE  RRBH&OM
12 BUE RIRIE — T — —FJORCH
AlZESI2% EFDEAMRE
RERDELER LR -AHSE
ZIEET AT EEERBRERL 2T
BE I -

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON MINING RIGHT

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the directors of the
Company appointed an independent professional valuer,
Roma Appraisals Limited, to perform a mining right valuation
with respect to the Hongzhuang Gold Mine situated at
Henan Province, China and impairment loss amounting
to HK$304,707,000 (2014: Nil) has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The fair value of the Hongzhuang Gold Mine was estimated
based on the Market Based Approach with reference to
comparable transactions, in which such approach was
consistent with mining right valuation as at 30 June 2014,
The key inputs used in the valuation was the consideration-
to-resource multiple obtained from comparable transactions,
the adjusted gold resource estimates based on latest
available technical review report prepared by an independent
specialist, Roma Oil and Mining Associates Limited and
technical review report prepared by SRK Consulting China
Limited.

According to the technical review report prepared by Roma
Oil and Mining Associates Limited, the Chinese standard
resource estimates as reported by SRK Consulting China
Limited were with uncertainty. If new mineral resource
estimation was carried out, based on the currently available
data and reporting under the 2012 JORC Code guidelines,
the resources would probably be reclassified to inferred
resource and exploration results/targets. The estimated
fair value of the Hongzhuang Gold Mine has taken into
consideration of this potential downgrade.
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ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17
AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no material change on the resources and/or
reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
as at 30 June 2015:

RLER
Type of ELERE HEED
WwEAH mining Gold  Reporting Egmil
Reporting date operation resources  Standard Gold grade
(Hg) (% /%)
() (911

“T-1% T 1073 HEIRE 1220 5.58
NA=TH Underground PRC 122b

30 June 2015 546 HEFE3RD 189
PRC 332

2466  HEIFE333 446
PRC 333

“Z-hfF N - HERE122 -

~NA=TH Underground PRC 122b

30 June 2015 - FERE333 -
PRC 333

Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body
thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating
the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8
of Appendix VIl of the circular of the Company dated 25
January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or
reserves estimation.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2015, the Group had a gearing ratio of 0.25
(2014: 0.22), which is calculated on net debt divided by total
equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum of
bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total cash and cash equivalents were HK$55,641,000 (2014:
HK$78,124,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and British Pound. Bank
loans were HK$468,634,000 (2014: HK$411,126,000),
which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar
and Renminbi. Other borrowings in respect of amounts
due to related companies and loan from a controlling
shareholder were approximately of HK$238,320,000 (2014:
HK$179,065,000). The bank loans are secured by first legal
charges over the Group's investment property, property
under development, certain leasehold land and buildings,
land use right and guaranteed by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company.

In line with the Group’s prudent financial management, the
Directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2015, the Group's investment property,
property under development, certain leasehold land and
buildings and land use right with an aggregate net carrying
value of HK$1,010,271,000 (2014: HK$600,579,000) were
pledged to certain banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 October 2014, the Company issued and allotted
a total of 1,710,526,310 conversion shares to Tamar
Investments Group Limited upon conversion of convertible
note into shares.

As at 30 June 2015, 40,000,000 share options were granted
by the Company under its share option scheme to eligible
persons to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company
and during the year, 10,000,000 share options were
exercised. Details of the share option scheme were disclosed
in the Company’s circular dated 25 June 2010.

Due to the conversion of convertible note and issue of shares
upon exercise of share options, the number of issued shares
and total share capital of the Company has increased from
5,110,656,270 to 6,831,182,580 and HK$442,555,000 to
HK$560,673,000 respectively during the reporting period.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 28 July 2014, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement for the
disposal of a property at Unit P, 2/F, Kaiser Estate
Phase 3, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon
at a consideration of approximately HK$28,888,000.
The transaction was completed on 29 August 2014
and gain on disposal amounted to approximately
HK$28,254,000.

On 6 October 2014 and 20 October 2014, the
Company as borrower has entered into loan
agreement with Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr.
Chan”) as lender in relation to loan facilities in the
amount of HK$50,000,000 and HK$8,000,000
respectively. The loans are unsecured, interest-bearing
at 1.5% per annum, and repayable on 5 October
2017 and 31 October 2017 respectively.

On 5 December 2014, 10 December 2014 and 8
January 2015, three formal “Sale and Purchase
Agreements” have been signed for the sale of three
floors of the property under development located at
no. 236-242 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan,
“Continental Place”, with total consideration of
HK$133,500,000.
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DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 22 January 2014, Max Rise Group Limited (“Max Rise”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
to a Memorandum of Understanding with an independent
third party whereby Max Rise shall transfer the 100% quota
of a subsidiary in Macao to the independent third party
at a consideration of HK$1,500,000. The transaction was
completed on 9 January 2015 and gain on disposal amount
to approximately HK$1,261,000.

NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS

1. Facility Agreement With a Joint Venture

On 28 August 2014, Master Gold Development
Limited (“Master Gold"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as the lender entered into a
facility agreement with Wealth Plus Developments
Limited (“Wealth Plus”), a joint venture of the
Group as the borrower, for providing a facility up to
HK$78,000,000. The facility will be used as working
capital for the development of “Bauhinia Square” in
Shanghai. The details of the facility agreement were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated
28 August 2014.

2. Provision Of Guarantee in Favour of a Bank

On 30 October 2014, the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a new guarantee agreement to
guarantee up to 50% of an additional term loan
facility granted by a bank to a subsidiary of a joint
venture of the Company (“JV Subsidiary”).
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The JV Subsidiary entered into a supplemental
facility agreement (the “Supplemental Facility
Agreement”) with a bank to provide an additional
RMB200,000,000 facility (“New Facility”) to an
existing term loan facility of RMB470,000,000.
As a result, the Company was required to provide
additional guarantee of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$126,000,000), representing up
to 50% of the new facility, to secure for the due and
punctual performance of all obligations of the JV
Subsidiary under the Supplemental Facility Agreement.
The details of the provision of guarantee were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 30
October 2014.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

On 12 October 2011, the Company issued a convertible note
with principal amount of HK$325,000,000 (the “Convertible
Note"”) to Tamar Investments as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries. On
10 October 2014, the Company received a conversion notice
from Tamar Investments in respect of the conversion of the
Convertible Note issued by the Company. As a result of the
conversion, the Company has issued and allotted a total
1,710,526,310 conversion shares on 10 October 2014.

INVESTMENT IN A COMPANY ENGAGED IN
DIAMOND RELATED BUSINESS

On 15 January 2015, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a subscription agreement to subscribe for 55,556
shares in equity interest of a target company (“Target
Company”) at a consideration of US$1,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately to HK$7,753,000). The Target Company
is mainly engaged in hardware and software technologies
relating to diamonds, diamond packaging and diamond
marketing developed business.
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ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2015, the Company had outstanding
loan of HK$148,000,000 due to Dr. Chan. The loan is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum, of which
i) HK$90,000,000 is due for repayment on 30 September
2017, ii) HK$50,000,000 is due for repayment on 5 October
2017 and iii) HK$8,000,000 is due for repayment on 31
October 2017.

Dr. Chan also advanced a loan in the amount of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,060,000)
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 25 October 2017.

As at 30 June 2015, an amount of HK$153,060,000 remains
outstanding owed by the Group to Dr. Chan.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$694,248,000 (2014: HK$577,500,000) with respect
to bank loans to its subsidiaries. Guarantee to the extent
of RMB335,000,000 (equivalent to approximately to
HK$423,809,000) (2014: RMB235,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$295,912,000)) was also given by the
Company in favour of a bank in respect of a term loan facility
granted to a subsidiary of a joint venture of the Company.
Under the guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay
the banks if the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the
reporting date, no provision for the Company’s obligation
under the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
considered that it was unlikely the repayment of the loans
would be in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2015, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$81,401,000 (2014:
HK$265,837,000), which was mainly the capital
commitments for the properties under development
undertaken by the Group and a joint venture attributable to
the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

1.

Subsequent to year end date, 40,000,000 share
options have been granted to certain directors of
the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.245 each
subject to the terms of the Company’s share option
scheme. No share options have been exercised
since the grant of these share options. The details
of the grant of share options were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 July 2015.

On 8 July 2015, Master Gold, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the lender entered
into a facility agreement with Wealth Plus, a joint
venture of the Group as the borrower, for providing a
facility in the amount of HK$50,000,000. The facility
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of
repayment. The facility will be used as the working
capital for the development of a commercial property
in Shanghai. The details of the facility agreement were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8
July 2015.

On 3 August 2015, Propway Limited, a company
beneficially owned by Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, an
Executive Director of the Company, as the lender and
the Company, as the borrower entered into a facility
agreement, for providing a facility in the amount
of HK$30,000,000 to the Company. The facility is
unsecured, with interest-bearing at 2.1% per annum
and repayable on 30 July 2016. The facility will be
used for the working capital requirements of the
Group.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES
AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group employs a total of approximately 1,013
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group's
remuneration to its employees is largely based on common
industrial practice. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme on 13 July 2010, under which, the Company may
grant options to eligible persons including directors and
employees.

The purpose of the share option scheme is (i) to recruit
and retain high calibre eligible persons and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group; (i) to recognize the
contributions of eligible persons to the growth of the Group
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and (iii) to motivate and to give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme was 232,830,334 which represented 3.41%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
annual report. The number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant in
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
shares in issue at the adoption date.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company as consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares of
the Company shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending 12 July 2020, after which no
further options will be granted. 40,000,000 share options
were granted pursuant to the scheme since its adoption and
up to 30 June 2015.

As at 30 June 2015, 40,000,000 share options have been
granted to certain directors of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.138 or HK$0.121 each subject to the terms
of the Company’s share option scheme. 10,000,000 share
options have been exercised since the grant of the share
options. Details of movement of the share options up to 30

TE-BREEEZ T —RF A June 2015 are set out below:

=TRZEBFFHINNT
BREHE
Number of share options
R-ZF—ME R-E-1§
BEHAH +tA—-H ~A=+H
RENGE (B/B/%) T BRITEE 2 REARTE b4 3] i
Balance Exercised Balance
Date of Grant Exercisable Exercise Price asat 1 July during  as at 30 June
Name of Grantee (dd/mm/yyyy) period per Share 2014 the Year 2015 Note
(B7)
(HKS)
Bk 19/06/2014 19/06/2014- 0.138 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 PffEE1
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 18/06/2024 Note 1
BREHT T 19/06/2014 19/06/2014- 0.138 10,000,000 - 10,000,000  FizET
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 18/06/2024 Note 1
FELEE 19/06/2014 19/06/2014- 0.138 10,000,000 10,000,000 - -
Mr. Yam Tat Wing 18/06/2024
BERAE 25/07/2014 25/07/2014- 0.121 10,000,000 - 10,000,000  FIzE
Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing 24/07/2024 Note 1
PIsET - IR TE Note 1: No share options have been exercised.

RELB% ARRBTESEHN =
T—HF+ A+ B E$E40,000,000
R RE 1TEE AEBR0.245%5
ﬁ:o

Subsequent to the year end, on 7 July 2015, 40,000,000
share options were granted to certain directors of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.245 each.

AR BB EE —PFHBER
RAEPBREME=1T/\-

Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all
transactions and the borrowings of the Group are primarily
denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi.
The risk of foreign exchange fluctuation is minimal. During
the year, the Group made use of foreign exchange forward
contracts in order to minimise exchange rate risk as a result
of fluctuation in British Pound. Management will continue
to monitor the foreign exchange risk exposure and will take
appropriate actions when necessary. During the year, the
Group has entered into certain foreign exchange forward
contracts.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Friday, 27 November 2015 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 25 November 2015 to Friday, 27
November 2015, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24
November 2015.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
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On behalf of the Directors

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP, is the Chairman
and Founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorship in various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for strategic
planning, corporate development and investment of the
Group. Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the
jewellery industry. He is currently the Honorary Permanent
President of the Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association; Honorary Member of Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong, China Ltd.; Appointed Member and Institutional
Advancement and Outreach Committee Member of the
University Court of The Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology; Member of Product Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
as well as a member of other trade associations. In
community, charitable and political involvements, Dr. Chan
is the Permanent Honorary Director of Friends of Hong
Kong Association Ltd., and Member of The Association
of Chairmen of The Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr.
Chan was appointed a Committee Member of the City of
Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
since 2003; and the Founding President of Jiangmen
Overseas Chinese Enterprise Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director and
Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive Director
of the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. She is responsible for the daily operations,
financial management, corporate development, sales and
marketing as well as strategic planning of the Group. Ms.
Cheng has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry and has been actively involved in the business
development of the Group since the beginning. Ms. Cheng
also plays an active role in the community, currently Director
of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2014-2016), and Executive
Committee, Honorary Vice President and Committee
Member of Women Entrepreneurs of the Hong Kong
Federation of Women. In addition, she was awarded as one
of the “100 Chinese Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs” in
2006 and was a Committee Member of the City of Jiangmen
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Ms.
Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995. She
is an Executive Director of the Company and is responsible
for property development in Hong Kong, retail operation
and the business administration functions in the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from University of California, Berkeley
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Ms. Chan
is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of
America. She is Charter President of Zonta Club of Hong
Kong II, actively involved in the Zonta Community. She is the
daughter of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He is
an Executive Director of the Company and currently manages
the daily operations of the Group activities. He is responsible
in various aspects of the Group such as sales and marketing,
product development and innovation, investment activities,
finance, as well as corporate and business development, etc.

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
including as the President of Entrepreneurs’ Organization
(Hong Kong and China South Chapters); the Vice Chairman
of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association; the Founding Chairman of the Youth Chapter
of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council; Member of
the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council; and the Executive Committee member
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He was appointed
as a committee member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference since 2013. He is
also a Director of Hong Kong United Youth Association.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
has a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.
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Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing, joined the Group in 1998,
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
on 1 March 2014. He is also the General Manager of
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr. Wong has over
30 years experience in manufacturing, sales marketing and
management in jewellery industry. Mr. Wong is responsible
for overall development and management of Group's
jewellery business.

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, joined the Group in 2011 and was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 1
March 2014. He is also the General Manager — Business
Development and Mining of the Group and is responsible
for overseeing all mining and property investment operations
devising corporate strategy. Mr. Yam was educated up to
matriculation and he obtained a certificate in Personnel
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam had served in the Hong
Kong Police Force (the “Force”) for over 37 years, He was
previously Deputy Commissioner, Operations from January
2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in
leadership, public administration and crisis management.

During his career in the Force, Mr. Yam was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star Medal, Colonial Police Long
Service Medal with 3rd clasp, the Colonial Police Medal
for Meritorious Service, the Hong Kong Police Medal for
Distinguished Service and Chief Executives Commendation.
In August 2011, he was appointed an Affiliated Fellow of
Wu Yee Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
for a term of five years.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fang Gang, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
on 15 July 2010. Mr. Fang obtained his Bachelor’'s Degree
from the School of Engineering, Xi'an Jiaotong University in
1982 and a Master's Degree from the School of Engineering,
Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1988. He has over 20 years
experience in the metallurgical industry. In 1988, Mr. Fang
joined China Minmetals Corporation (“Minmetals”). From
1995 to 1999, Mr. Fang was with Minmetals Australia Pty
Limited. Commencing July 1999, Mr. Fang is the General
Manager of China National Metal Products Co Ltd, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Minmetals. Mr. Fang has resigned as
Non-executive Director with effect from 25 September 2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 35 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He
was subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government in the year 2007.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies. Mr.
Chan is a Director of a private company engaging in logistics
and forwarding.
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Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze
graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from
University of Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985. Mr.
Sze has extensive experience in investment and corporate
management and is currently a Non-executive Director of
China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (stock code:
3778), a Company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Main Board”) and
an Executive Director of a private company, Hang Tung
Resources Holding Limited, and holds directorship in various
private companies. Mr. Sze is a member of the National
Committee and an executive member of the Beijing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, and currently the Permanent Honorary President
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
He is also elected as a member of Election Committee of
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of Peace and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2011 and 2015
respectively.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr.
Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3778), a Company listed on the Main Board. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has held senior positions in multinational
companies. He obtained his MBA from University of
Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-time tutor
at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March 2004
to November 2007, Mr. Cheung was an Executive Director
of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief Financial
Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was an
Independent Director of LJ International Inc., a company
listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to October 2007.
From January 2001 to December 2003, Mr. Cheung was a
Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of e-Lux
Corporation, in charge of value-added telecommunications
services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, FGA, DGA, FGAHK, CG
(Diamond), joined the Group in 1987, is the Head of Group
Operations. He has over 25 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the

jewellery industry. He holds gemmologist qualification, and

is fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain;
director of The Gemmological Association of Hong Kong;
and appointed as RPL Assessor at Qualifications Framework.
Currently, Mr. Choi oversees the daily operation, information
& technology, administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge of the China retail operations and
the implementation of I1SO Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined the Group in 1976,
is the Head of Operation of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in
managing jewellery factories. He has extensive knowledge
in all production aspects as well as in logistic management.
Currently, he oversees the daily operations of the jewellery
factories in China.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2015, the Company has complied with the
Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.17 which are explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time preforming them.
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BEEeEE-_T—RFA=T The Board held five meetings during the financial year ended
HIEHRFE W%ETT THRg&E- 30 June 2015. Attendance of individual Director at the Board
BHE-_ZT-—RAFAA=THILEMK meetings, other Board Committee meetings and the annual
FE EE9gR EFE A general meeting of the Company held on 2 December 2014
tEEEERLARANR TN (2014 AGM") during financial year ended 30 June 2015 are

FH+_A-HRIZRRBAFARZ as follows:
(ZZE—UFERRAFRE|)HE

MEEZHEBFRAT
BHUEBITRH
Meetings Attended / Held
“F-m%
ENZEE HMZEE RREZEg BR
Exggi - - - BEXE
2014
Meetings of ~ Meetingof ~ Meeting of Annual
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
= Director Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
REEE L o5 ATET Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, Bgs, Jp 5/5 - - 1n 1
g/t Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 5/5 - 1n - 1
BREHTT Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 5/5 - - - 1
RELLE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 5/5 - - - 1
HERRE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing 5/5 - - - 1n
EEEEE Mr. Yam Tat Wing 5/5 - - - 1n
HHTEE Non-executive Director
bl [P Mr. Fang Gang* 1/5 - - - 1n
BUIFRITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
KRR  8es MBE AF4+  Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, Jp 5/5 20 17 - 17
BRmE Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 5/5 20 7 1 1n
MESRIRL A  Bes AT &L Mr. Sze Irons, B8s, JP 4/5 12 0/1 - 17
REBLAE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 5/5 22 - 17 1N
* TR EB BTN ITESRH * Mr. Fang Gang has resigned as Non-executive Director with
% HATE-RFNAZTHEAR effect from 25 September 2015.
R
EFeCTHeRRIECER KFE Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
HEFRETE- regular Board meetings.
BRESFeTHeRcAHE T Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
+HEA ﬁﬁ?ﬁ? NEERESEE 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
HeErERE EXNMAEMES Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
gex lertBRERNE LA meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
AMEF o
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Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.

A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.
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Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr. Chan") is the Chairman of
the Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group
and also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that
the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a timely
manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley (“Ms. Cheng”).

Ms. Cheng is the Managing Director of the Company. She is
responsible for day-to-day management and the marketing
activities of the Group. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive Officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
It should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is a strong independent element
on the board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. Non-executive directors should be of sufficient
calibre and number for their views to carry weight.
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As at 30 June 2015, the Board comprises six Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kei,
Vicki, Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-
hing and Mr. Yam Tat Wing; Mr. Fang Gang as Non-executive
Director; four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr.
Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors are
expressly identified by categories of Executive Directors,
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors, in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng and Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor are the daughter and
son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng. Ms. Chan Wai
Kei, Vicki is the sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 26 to 31 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk.

A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at
regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.
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Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting at least
once every three years in accordance with articles 115(A) and
115(D) of the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Board considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1
is not material as Non-executive Directors are subjected to
retirement by rotation at least once in every three years and
re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability
under code provision A.4.3, any further re-appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Company'’s Board for more than nine years will be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul has served as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than nine
years. In addition to his confirmation of independence
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Yu
continues to demonstrate the attributes of an Independent
Non-executive Director by providing independent views and
advice and there is no evidence that his tenure has had any
impact on his independence. Mr. Yu was re-appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company at
the 2014 AGM and the Directors are of the opinion that
he remains independent notwithstanding the length of his
service and they believe that his valuable knowledge and
experience continue to generate significant contribution to
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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A.5. Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Dr. Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities and
development. Given the essential unitary nature of the board,
non-executive directors have the same duties of care and skill
and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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ZEEENEE-ZT—RFA=T The individual training record of each Director for the year
A IEFE 25 2 R 50 8 a0 ended 30 June 2015 is as follows:
T
BEREMT#L
BFHEEN
EHER
HEHEE
Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates*/
Attending
= Directors seminar
HITEF Executive Directors
PREEZIHE L - BBS AT ML Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, JP v
BB/ N A+ Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley v
PREHE L+ Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki v
PR1E S Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor v
\mEREEE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing v
FEEREE Mr. Yam Tat Wing v
FHITEE Non-executive Director
el Pt Mr. Fang Gang
(RZZE—RFNAZFTHABME) (Resigned with effect from
25 September 2015) v
BIIHPITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIE XS4 8BS MBE- AF 4+ Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, 8BS, MBE, JP v
PR AR St = Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek v
MEER R ST A+ BBS - AT 4t Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP v
SR A Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank v
# MEBHLEE AR RI&NE # Reading materials concerning latest developments in
B HEEEEREEER ML - corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory
developments.
BEFHERBREIZEREER At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent
REZERRAQNBHEEAAR reappointment, the Director is required to disclose to
NRISABETELOEE REE the Company the number and nature of offices held in
VA K2 B Ath 88 K& HE - LA R P8 K &Y public companies or organizations and other significant
KE-SEEBBRARAERAR commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
WE R ERBARMARNDQF also required to notify the Company whenever there are

changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
The Company has received written confirmation from
all the Independent Non-executive Directors concerning
their independence. The Board considers all of them are
independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. All the Directors have attended
the 2014 AGM.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of
the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry with
all Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 June 2015.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors” remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2015 to discuss remuneration related matters
and review the remuneration policy of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2015 is set out below:

AE
R 48 B Number of persons
Emolument bands 2015 2014
=% 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 2 3
1,000,001/8 7t £ 1,500,000/ 7t HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing consolidated
financial statements of each financial period, which shall give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2015, the Directors have made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 67 to
69 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2015.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile
and pages 7 to 25 under Chairman'’s Statement.
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The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Internal Controls

The board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.
The Board requires management to establish and maintain
sound and effective internal controls. Evaluation of the
Group's internal controls covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions had
been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of internal controls on
different systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis
based on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Company'’s independent auditor.

For the year ended 30 June 2015, save as the auditor’s
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has paid approximately
HK$6,000 in relation to the non-audit services (including
other reporting services).

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.
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The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on issuer’s
behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group's business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of matters reserved
to the Board for decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees
Board committees should be formed with specific written

terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.
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The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3. Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2015, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2014 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2014 AGM are
disclosed on page 33.
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The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and the Articles of Association of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.
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F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important roles in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The company secretary is responsible for advising the
board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his
appointment and removal is subject to Board approval. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Director’'s duties, such as by giving advice on
corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2015, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights may call for an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office. Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
who have a right to vote or at least 50 members who have a
right to vote on the resolution of the annual general meeting
to which the requests relate, may put forward proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office. Procedures on how
shareholders can propose a person for election as a Director
are available at the Company’s website for shareholders’
information.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office of
the Company. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where
appropriate, will be forwarded to and answered by the Board
or relevant Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’s Articles
of Association during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of the
Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 June 2015.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the year ended 30
June 2015 and the financial position of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 70 to 238.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 25 of
this Annual Report.
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FTERREBEAREEY PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
BERIBRERITHRER 1. Economic climate and individual market performance
HRAKRERBAREEZHE As jewellery and diamonds are luxury consumer
oo ERIRE R KBEIRIEY products, the impact of global financial, economic
HEEGEORBE hZZE conditions on consumer confidence and purchasing
AT EARAEE 2 HERR power would affect sales and results of the Group.
N 2EE - REEM RIS EE The economic growth or decline in our geographical
BRIMELHEEKREH markets that affected consumer spending on jewellery
By BN ELREE would also affect our revenue of the Group. In
Z WS o BN - BB IRIR Al B addition, economic environment would affect the
HERBITEZEEMAE production cost of jewellery business such as rent,
WMiE  FIWA BRKE labour cost, packaging and transportation cost etc.
BIPAR T o
MERHE KEREEETE In property side, economic climate directly affects
MEEE REEHAEERY the value of properties and investors’ interest in
¥HEBzHEHBLHESWA - our property projects and rental income. Rising
BREERAN ~ BB TR RATRHE construction costs, labour costs and material prices
BEAYETETKYEER will affect the budget and the timing for completion
BrzEE KERExK- of the property projects.
FEBZRBEXEBFTERK The Group’s mining business requires substantial
W& - BRVBENTERM investment and may not achieve expected financial
FRE-BABRKE R E results. The fluctuation in price of mineral ores may
RERIR MBS 2 RE affect prospects of the investments and impairment
AR ERBEEEZ(ME- of the mining business may affect the valuation of
REERESESEEEE mining assets. The risk of loss of asset value such
BERERENFIBENERE as impairment loss on mining right is set out in the
HWEH o Chairman’s Statement on page 13.
™5 Rk 2. Market risk

The Group is exposed to certain market risk such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
details are set out in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FTEMBEERER FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FEUBEREEONET The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
below:
2015 2014 +(-)
FET FET &
HK$000 HK$000 Change
M RE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Yz Revenue 730,900 868,103 -15.8%
EME(%) Gross profit margin (%) 14.4% 132% 1.2ppE DR
BRI B RETSHATEF]  Earnings before interest and
([EBITJ) income tax (“EBIT") 78,715 64,211 22.6%
EBITEL 3 (%) EBIT margin (%) 10.8% 7.4%  34ppEDEH
AARHEB AEERF  Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 141,571 50,580 179.9%
FEFE (%) Net profit margin (%) 19.4% 58% 13.6ppA D Zh
1BE E 13 (%) Return on total assets (%) 2.5% 22% 03ppEEH
TEMHER KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
RekBRe% R Cash and cash equivalents 55,641 78,124 -28.8%
TEEE,/ (AfE)FE  Netcurrent assets/(iabilities) 292,463 (127,474) 329.4%
BERS Total assets 3,097,489 2,866,683 8.1%
EREEE: Total liabilities 1,099,418 1,020,457 7.7%
RITEK Bank loans 468,634 411,126 14.0%
ANREEA AEIGEZ  Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 2,004,201 1,852,122 8.2%
Betbx Cash ratio 0.08 0.13 -38.5%
MENLE (%) Current ratio (times) 1.42 0.79 79.7%
BEABHE Gearing ratio 0.25 0.22 13.6%
P B8 1 % 51 ¥R (%) Return on shareholders’ equity (%) 7.1% 27%  A4ppEDE
FRERZF (BIL) Basic earning per share ( HK cents ) 2.23 0.99 125.3%
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of energy. In recent years, the
Group has implemented several policies to encourage
employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the
commercial goals of the Group.

Operating Practices

The Group upholds high standards of operating
practices and complies with stringent jewellery
manufacturing standards. One of the subsidiaries of
the Company is a certified member of the Responsible
Jewellery Council (“RJC"). RIC is a not-for-profit
organization which promotes responsible ethical,
social and environmental practices, which respect
human rights throughout the Diamond, Gold and
Platinum Group Metals jewellery supply chain. As
a certified member of the RIC, the subsidiary had
undergone independent, third party auditing to
show our business practices at all facilities within
the certification scope confirm to RJC's Code of
Practices for business ethics, labour rights and working
conditions, social and environmental performance.
The Group has stringent requirements to maintain
high levels of quality control and responsible business
practices.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group's remuneration to its employees is up to prevailing
market standard.

The Group values mutually beneficial long standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality products to its customers and
developing on mutual trust among its suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in the investment property of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTE

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
convertible note during the year are set out in notes 36 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 June 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$201,822,000 (2014:
HK$189,389,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
240.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$231,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 53% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 20%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 30% and 72%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing

Mr. Yam Tat Wing

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Fang Gang
(Resigned with effect from 25 September 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank

In accordance with Articles 109, 115(A) and 115(D) of the
Articles of Association, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Dr.
Chan”), Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai,
Frank shall retire from office by rotation and all of them are
eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are available on the website of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 26 to
31 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan has a service contract with the Company for an
indefinite period. Mr. Yam Tat Wing and Mr. Wong Edward
Gwon-hing have entered into letters of appointment with
the Company dated 1 March 2014 respectively in relation to
their appointment as Executive Directors of the Company,
for a term of three years. Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor and Ms.
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki have entered into service agreements
with the Company respectively commencing from 1 July
2014 in relation to their appointments as Executive Directors
of the Company, for a term of three years. All the above
appointments may be terminated by at least six month’s
written notice served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out on pages 22 and 23 and in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

1. The remuneration package of the following directors
have been revised after taking consideration of their
responsibilities and the prevailing market rates:

- with effect from 1 January 2015, the monthly
remuneration of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley,
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, Mr. Chan Wai Lap,
Victor and Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing have
been revised to HK$190,000, HK$86,000,
HK$148,000 and HK$112,000 respectively.

2. Mr. Fang Gang has resigned as a Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 25
September 2015.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

1. On 23 June 2014, Henan Multi-Resources Mining
Company Limited* (“Henan Multi-Resources”) as
borrower has entered into a supplemental loan
agreement with EM M 1BHIEEBRAER AR ("E
M1EFH") , a company which Dr. Chan is the ultimate
beneficial owner, as lender, to extend the repayment
date of a loan in the amount of RMB27,250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$34,474,000) to 31
May 2017. The loan is unsecured and interest-free.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only
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2. On 23 June 2014, Henan Multi-Resources as borrower
has entered into a supplemental loan agreement with
Dr. Chan as lender, to extend the repayment date of
a loan in the amount of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,060,000) to 25 October 2017.
The loan is unsecured and interest-free.

3. On 27 May 2015, Henan Multi-Resources as
borrower has entered into a 2nd supplemental loan
agreement with EME# as lender, to further
extend the repayment date of a loan in the amount
of RMB1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,897,000) to 26 May 2016. The loan is
unsecured and interest-free.

Except as disclosed above and in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company’s holding
company, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary was a party and
in which a director of the Company or an entity connected
with a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the financial year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the interests of directors
of the Company in businesses which might compete with
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2015 and as at 30
June 2015 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, a Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of gold mining activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and
Indonesia. Although some of the businesses carried out by
these companies are similar to those of the Group, they are
of different scale and at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) were as set out below:

mREEHINT
AR
2#1T
ARRZEERYE BAES L
Number of ordinary shares of the Company Percentage of
PN+ NEER ARG the Company’s
Personal Corporate Underlying e issued share
Rl Name of Directors interest interest interest Total capital
ez Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%
(PEE1) (Note 1)
(]S Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 5063395220 - 5063,395220 74.12%
(PEE1) (Note 1)
e Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 200,000 - - 200,000 0.003%
BREZ Chan Wai Lap, Victor 2,700,000 - 10,000,000 12,700,000 0.19%
(P7E2) (Note 2)
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.15%
(P7E2) (Note 2)
TEE Yam Tat Wing 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 0.035%
HEE Wong Edward Gwon-hing - - 10.000.000 10.000.000 0.15%

MIFE1 : ZEEmmRE T RE /N Rt
& A 2 2 alTamar Investments
Group Limited$§ 4 °

MiaE2 : ZERERETRR 2BREY
P NIl

(F#5£2) (Note 2)

Note 1: Such interests are held by Tamar Investments Group Limited,
which is a company wholly-owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin, Shirley.

Note 2: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares
of the Company in respect of share options granted to the
Directors.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no time during the year were the rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2015, no person, other than Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, had registered
an interest in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.



Directors’ Report m EEERE

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE_Z—RF A=ZTHLFE

£ iR A58 13.2015% & 513.221%
AREBEARREMBENZ
FFERBERE

BiE R BIE13.2016 % 513.22
e BEET AEBIRENTB
EPR=_T—RFA=+HMNA
FHE-MBENEREMBER LR
AIE14.07MNEF AT 2 EEL X
#930.8% -

R-B-—RFRNA=TH UBE
Bz & BERIIMT :

EREB
Name of
the entities

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance, which
was made by the Group, continued to exist as at 30 June
2015. The financial assistance, in aggregate, represent
approximately 30.8% under the assets ratio as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

The amounts of the financial assistance as at 30 June 2015
were set out below:

rEERE FEN-EN MBEY
ZIEGEE BB k)
Attributable  Shareholder's NEER Aggregate
interest held loan or Corporate Financial
by the Group Advances Guarantee Assistance
BT BT BT

HKS HKS HKS

Wealth Plus Developments Limited
([Wealth Plus | ) R ELF B 2 ]
Wealth Plus Developments Limited

(“Wealth Plus”) and its subsidiary
P EE

1. BTRRERIBRIERERL
RAABELEHRER 2 ZEBER S
BED - M AEERRERLBR
R BRI B R R

2. N A gh AR 47 B F Wealth Plus
ZHBARIZEHEREER
EMt TRITZERBEA
R #335,000,0007T (FHE R4
423,809,000/ 7T) « EREAR =T
——F+— A+ NHzBEXERA
HRET AHEARE -

50% 530,200,000 423,809,000 954,009,000

(BEED) (FEE2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Notes:
1. The shareholder’s loan or advances had been granted as

working capital for the development of the construction
site located in Yangpu District, of Shanghai in the PRC. The
outstanding shareholder’s loan or advances is interest free,
unsecured and has no fixed repayment term.

2. A guarantee to the extent of RMB335,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$423,809,000) was given by the Company
in favour of a bank in respect of a term loan facility granted to
a subsidiary of Wealth Plus. The guarantee period last for five
years from the date of first drawdown on 16 November 2012.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES (continued)

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the
Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial position
of the joint venture and the Group’s attributable interests in
these affiliated companies based on their latest consolidated
financial statements available are presented below:

" AEH

Bt 75 Ak 0L 3 FE 15 BY) ¥

Combined Group's

statement of attributable

financial position interest

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$°000

SEMBEE Non-current assets 2,538,640 1,269,320
MENEE Current assets 29,591 14,796
mENEE Current liabilities (117,217) (58,609)
JERBAEE Non-current liabilities (2,014,652) (1,007,326)
BEFE Net assets 436,362 218,181

BRE—TFE BIREETH
WEME T Lo

MEALRS
BB AR5 (ERBEEA TR

2) 2 FERPI R A BB
EEp o

Further details are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the significant events after the reporting date is set
out in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalf of the Directors

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
B5E : +852 2218 8288 FRETHETI5R
{8 : +852 2815 2239 IKZRAID2548

www.bdo.com.hk

To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 70 to 238, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 25 September 2015
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2015 2014
k=3 F#T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
W & Revenue 6 730,900 868,103
BHE R A Cost of sales (625,582) (753,837)
EAM Gross profit 105,318 114,266
$HE Ko KA Selling and distribution costs (25,097) (24,467)
1THE A Administrative expenses (103,232) (89,853)
H g A Other operating income 42,635 11,137
SEMENTEZES) Change in fair value of investment
property 16 333,454 14,544
AHEEZCREERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
518 financial assets 20(b) (4,834) (2,077)
HEAHBEZSREE Y Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
518 financial assets (549) =
HiEE R EEE Impairment loss on mining right 17 (304,707) =
Y B & REREEIE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 14 (8,408) -
I ERAE-BEES 2 Income arising from amortising the
WA financial guarantee liabilities 2,884 2,481
VARE 15 7 20 2 R M Share-based compensation 38 (470) (2,114)
LD ®N Finance costs 7 (13,557) (12,240)
EhaEEEE Share of results of joint ventures 41,721 40,294
I‘? FfT 15 6 80 25 71 Profit before income tax 8 65,158 51,971
Frisfiil e, (Bs) Income tax credit/(expense) 9 76,179 (1,232)
FWiEF Profit for the year 141,337 50,739
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2015 2014
ifz3 FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hih2mix s I #HIE Other comprehensive income,
net of tax
HEREH EZERZZ Items that may be subsequently
HR: reclassified to profit or loss:
A E e mEE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
NG financial assets (5,480) (363)
ROt E r £ a8 ERER Reclassification from equity to profit
HEREDERIEZS or loss on impairment of available-
for-sale financial assets 4,834 2,077
RHERHEE 2 S EER Release upon disposal of available-
i 3% for-sale financial assets 1,105 _
MEFINER LS AT R Exchange differences on translation of
AR FE N foreign operations, associates and
joint ventures 8,200 (2,618)
FRNEHMEEW S 0B HIE Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 8,659 (904)
FHRNLHEW AT Total comprehensive income
for the year 149,996 49,835
FE {5 £ s F : Profit for the year attributable to:
RARER A Owners of the Company 141,571 50,580
FEFEHIl R o Non-controlling interests (234) 159
141,337 50,739
EiEENEEY SRR Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
ZN/NEIE 2 =N Owners of the Company 150,230 49,676
FE7E e Non-controlling interests (234) 159
149,996 49,835
AAREEE AEMLERZ Earnings per share for profit
SRAER attributable to the owners HK cent HK cent
of the Company 11 b= JBN
—HK — Basic 2.23 0.99
—#E — Diluted 2.07 0.75
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2015 2014
Kzt F#ET FETT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y BB KRR E Property, plant and equipment 14 104,255 115,940
T+ b R Land use rights 15 38,784 40,083
"EME Investment property 16 446,040 581,000
FRIE R Mining right 17 751,427 1,052,432
i NI - 2 Interests in associates 18 = =
REasEhE s ER Interests in joint ventures 19 748,386 573,224
At E s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 21,052 28,294
& B PR GRIR Long-term receivables 21 - =
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 35 5,932 6,109
2,115,876 2,397,082
MENEE Current assets
BERPYIE Property under development 22 546,497 =
FE Inventories 23 218,483 257,922
B 5 e GRIE Trade receivables 24 116,380 105,054
AN HKIE  ZE R Prepayments, deposits and
b fE U FRIE other receivables 38,431 14,023
U AFEGFABRZ Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 25 6,026 14,309
B U — R B & A B 3R Due from an associate 18 = =
FEY—MHE & EERIB Due from a joint venture 19 155 169
BekBEER Cash and cash equivalents 26 55,641 78,124
981,613 469,601
mEAR Current liabilities
B SR FIE Trade payables 27 (140,397) (135,354)
H AR RIB R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (68,797) (36,357)
RITE K Bank loans 28 (468,634) (411,126)
& T B ARE Obligation under finance leases 29 (359) (212)
FESEEE A Rl A Due to related companies 30 (3,099) (2,330
TESmIT A Derivative financial instruments 31 (16) -
Al E & Convertible note 32 = (4,924)
M EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 33 (3,086) (2,481)
THIaE Provision for tax (4,762) (4,291)
(689,150) (597,075)
RBEE (&) FE Net current assets/(liabilities) 292,463 (127,474)
BEERTHER Total assets less current liabilities 2,408,339 2,269,608
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2015 2014
k23 Fi#&T FHETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
EREBARE Non-current liabilities
& T B AIE Obligation under finance leases 29 (1,070) (345)
FEAS A& A Rl 5RI8 Due to related companies 30 (82,161) (76,774)
WM ERAR Financial guarantee liabilities 33 (4,115) (5,789)
PERRRR R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 34 (153,060) (95,037)
FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 35 (169,862) (245,437)
(410,268) (423,382)
BEEFE Net assets 1,998,071 1,846,226
&= EQUITY
[N Share capital 36 560,673 442,555
G Reserves 37 1,443,528 1,409,567
KRB HER ANELHE = Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 2,004,201 1,852,122
Ik HE I HE = Non-controlling interests (6,130) (5,896)
R Total equity 1,998,071 1,846,226
REESFZ On behalf of the Directors
BREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZ Director
B0 /) 3% Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
4 Director
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2015 2014
F#T FET
HK$000 HK$°000
REEXBHERE Cash flows from operating activities
& P15 5 Al v A Profit before income tax 65,158 51,971
B THIERFAE: Adjustments for:
BERAN Finance costs 13,557 12,240
JE(E A& EHELE Share of results of joint ventures (41,721) (40,294)
ARG AR 75 B/ 2 SR Share-based compensation 470 2,114
M WE REETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 8,507 7,911
& 3 {55 A AR A B Amortisation of land use rights 1,471 1,465
ERBE 1 6R Amortisation of mining right 1,229 1,074
FE#E Provision for inventories 1,864 1,196
B 5 WG IE R Provision for trade receivables 401 542
AHEEZSRMEERE Impairment loss on
E518 available-for-sale financial assets 4,834 2,077
HE—HEHBA Az Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (1,261) =
HEME BERZEZ Gain on disposal of property,
& plant and equipment (28,513) (77)
6L E S Loss on write-off of property,
=] plant and equipment 224 675
B R EEE Impairment loss on mining right 304,707 =
M - BE KRR EEE Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 8,408 -
MSEREGHRERES 2 Income arising from amortising the
WA financial guarantee liabilities (2,884) (2,481)
HEHEE SMEEL Loss on disposal of
518 available-for-sale financial assets 549 =
"EMENFTE 2 E Change in fair value of investment
property (333,454) (14,544)
REFEN IR HED Reversal of provision for long-term
receivables - (1,000)
TEREN —HE R R IR Gain on debt extinguishment
FrEE 2 EBEE K= arising from recognition of
amount due to a related
company - (3,880)
AR EREREERE Fair value loss on redemption
AT EEE option of convertible notes = 7
TESBT A AFERS Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments (181) (74)
SIE HEE S (Ke) Unrealised foreign exchange
loss/(gain) 5,766 (7,580)
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2015 2014
K&t F#ET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EELSEHA ZELEERN  Operating profit before working
capital changes 9,131 11,342
FERD Decrease in inventories 35,351 13,511
B 5 W SRIE N Increase in trade receivables (13,553) (299)
AR KIE R E R Increase in prepayments, deposits and
H i & UG SRIRIE N other receivables (24,582) (227)
AAFEFABZRZ Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets
SREERMD, (M) at fair value through profit or loss 8,283 (2,237)
REZETME Additions to property under
development (37,747) -
JEU —IAEEFIER D, Decrease/(Increase) in amount due
(#0) from a joint venture 14 (30)
B 5 & E A FE T FRIE & Increase in trade and other payables
FERTE FE N and accruals 32,649 1,257
FEfT BAE R R FUIB N Increase in amount due to related
companies 769 -
PTAE S B T BN Increase in derivative financial
instruments 197 112
REEEZRE Cash generated from operations 10,512 23,429
ERHE Interest paid (12,806) (10,598)
B REPEMER PRC enterprise income tax paid (428) (628)
BiRE (B)EEFEFH  Hong Kong profits tax refunded/
(paid) 737 (4,694)
BEER (TH)  E£Z Net cash (used in)/generated from
HEFHE operating activities (1,985) 7,509
BRERRERE Cash flows from investing activities
REWZE WEREE Additions to property,
plant and equipment 46(a) (4,914) (7,022)
REDBRRRENHEZ Additions to property under
BRPYIE development classified as
investment property (35,699) (18,694)
HE—BRBARZ Net cash inflow from disposal of
BemAFE a subsidiary 47 1,057 =
HEME  HE REZEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fr 5318 plant and equipment 29,154 385
HEAMEHEZSREEZ  Proceeds from disposal of available-
FriS#08 for-sale financial assets 10,071 -
BEEHEEZ SREE Purchase of available-for-sale financial
assets (7,753) (1,160)
L B = B e W R IE Receipt from long-term receivables - 1,000
BT HEEELEZEFEI  Increase in loans to a joint venture (128,800) (500)
REFBAREEFH Net cash used in investing activities (136,884) (25,991)
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2015 2014
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEERHRERE Cash flow from financing activities
AR R E R, Advance from/(Repayment to) a controlling
(EERERAR) shareholder 58,000 (10,000)
BEHXRERAR Repayment to ultimate holding company - (1,546)
8 Emﬁéﬁfﬂg\ﬁ@ﬁ: Repayment of obligation under finance leases (437) (275)
EEREREBEZAEE Repayment of coupon interest of
convertible note - (5,276)
B EREITEMESE ZRE  Consideration arising from exercise of
share option 1,379 -
FIRITER New bank loans 101,528 80,441
EBIRITER Repayment of bank loans (44,058) (5,532)
HEFBELEEFH Net cash generated from
financing activities 116,412 57,812
REeERFEEZEHE(HY)/ Net (decrease)/increase in
i3 cash and cash equivalents (22,457) 39,330
FENZRERREER Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 78,124 37,911
IVSEREB Y B Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (26) 883
ERZBRERFECER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 55,641 78,124
RERBREEHZEHRDIT  Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
e MIRITHER Cash and bank balances 55,641 78,124
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RATRAARGRES
Equity atrbutabl to the owners of the Company
TERRE EXR®  REER
k% BREER RREEE FTAREE ZbEE  MERR  RERE i e REEH & FmbiEs

Share Share Non- Captal ~ Convertible ~ Exchange  Investment Non-
Share ~ premium option ~ distbutable Other contrbution  noteequty  fluctuation  revauation  Retained controling
aptd account Teserve Tesene Teserve resenve Teserve Tesene Teserve profts Total  interests  Totel equity

&t FEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr fEr  TEn TEr  TEn TR TEr FEn
SO0 SO0 HKSODD HKSOOD HKSOOO HKSUDD HKSOOD HKSOO HKSUDD AKSOOD HKSODD HKSORD HKSO0D

RIT-ZEtA-BukR Balance at 1 July 2013 51,107 391,448 - 273606 (5397) 12,066 116,034 8329 2612 866697 1791463 (6,055 1,785,408
R=F-BE=A=H Transfrs upon the abolfion of nominalvalue of
BRRHEES shres on 3 Match 2014 note 36) 9148 (391449 - - - - - - - - - o =
442,55 - - 273606 (5397) 12,066 116,034 8290 2612 866697 1791463 (6,055) 1,785,408
RERRRRLRAL Deemed capital contribution arising from debt

-RBEARERERT ertinguishment from a reated company ufmately

EEZBfEHE (HiE=10) el by controling shareholdr (note 3000) - - - - - 8869 o = o = 8869 = 8869
BRARG B AR 2 AW Recogniton of shere-based compensation (note 38}

(M - - 211 - - - - - - - 2014 - 2114
2EEAIRS Tansactons with owners - - ALl - - 8869 - - - -0, -0,
Rk Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 50,580 50,580 159 50,739
A2 ENE: Other comprehensie income:

e SRAELTEL Change in far value of avalable-forsale fnancia asets, net

25 78 - - - - - - - - (363) - (363) - ()
RRLE, SREERER Reclassfication from equity to proft orloss on

HERENIEZER impaiment of avalable-forsale financial assets - - - - - - - - 21 B 21 B 21
RERIEE BEQAR Exchange differences on trenslaton of foreign aperations,

REGRIERZE associates and joint ventures - - - - - - - (2618) = = (2618 = (2618
EMEERELE Total comprehensiv income for the e - - - - - - - 618 174 050 4966 159 498%
RZF-BERA=TRZEH Balance at 30 June 2014 44255 - 2114 273606* (37 093¢ 116034 80672 436 9 1852122 (58%) 134626
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LIGE N {15
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

TERZE  ERND  REEH

Rx  RREEE FUNRHE  HRHE  IREE  E4EE L] & REEY & kEEEE  RaE
Share Non- Capital ~ Convertible  Exchange  Investment Non-
Share option ~ distributable Other contribution  noteequity  fluctuation revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
i FET ki 73 71 FET k73 i3 FET &L b7 i FET
HKSO0D — KKSODO  HKSUOD  KKSUMO  HKSUOD  KKSOOO  HKSUDD  HKSOOD  HKSUDD  HKSOOD  KKSUWO XSO
RZZ-MELA-BZEH Balance at 1 July 2014 442,55 2114 273,606 (5397) 20,935 116,034 80672 4326 97211 1852122 (589) 1846226
SRTARRE (HE=t12) Conversion of convertble note (note 32) 116,03 - - - - (11603) - - - - - -
Recognition of share-based compensation
(note 38) - 40 - - - - - - - 40 - 470
frimE (=17) Evercise of share options (note 36) 2084 (705) - - - - - - - 1319 = 1319
EFEALZS Transactions with owners 118,118 (35) - - - (1603) - - - 189 - 1889
ERER Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - MM 11,571 (38 1337
Afe2mhE Other comprefiensie ncome
THHE SREELTEL Change infar value of avalable-orsele finencl
2958 asets, et - - - - - - - (5480 - (5480) = (5480)
RAEHE SRERHER Recsficaton from equiy to proftor
HERENARERR Joss on impaiment on avalble-orsale
finandil assets - - - - - - - 4,834 - 4834 - 4,834
REETHLE, SRERR Reease upon disposal of avalable-forsale
finandil assets - - - - - - - 1,105 - 1,105 - 1,105
Exchange differences on trandlation of foreign
operations, associates and joint ventures - - - - - - 8,200 - - 8,200 - 8,200
ERSENELE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 8200 459 141571 150,230 (234) 149,99
RIF-TERAZTHZER Balance at 30 June 2015 560,673 1879* 273,606* (5,397) 20,935 =+ 88872 4785 1058848 2004201 (6130) 1998071
* ZERBREEREMBMARRERFR * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
=

ZErATEE1,443,528,0007 70 (= F
—PO4F : 1,409,567,000% 7T ) © statement of financial position.

HK$1,443,528,000 (2014: HK$1,409,567,000) in the consolidated
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

- Mining operation

= Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited
("Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to
238 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the provisions
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern
the preparation of consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements also include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the

first time the following new/revised HKFRSs and

amendments issued by the HKICPA which is relevant

to and effective for the Group's financial statements

for the annual period beginning on 1 July 2014:

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 36

Amendments to
HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 21

Presentation — Offsetting

Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

Financial Instruments:

Recognition and
Measurement

— Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

Levies

Except as explained below, the adoption of these

amendments has no material impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements
by adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which
clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross
settlement mechanism is considered equivalent
to net settlement. The amendments are applied
retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose
the recoverable amount of an asset or cash
generating unit (“CGU") to those periods in which
an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed,
and expand the disclosures where the recoverable
amount of impaired assets or CGUs has been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal.
The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The disclosures about the impairment of mining right
and property plant and equipment in note 17 and
14 respectively have been modified accordingly.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of a hedging
instrument to a central counterparty meets specified
criteria. The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
apply hedge accounting.

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 21 — Levies

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 21 clarifies that an entity
recognises a liability to pay a levy imposed by
government when the activity that triggers payment,
as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation has been applied retrospectively.

The adoption of HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 21 has
no impact on these financial statements as the
interpretation is consistent with the Group's previous
application of its accounting policies on provisions.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group's financial statements, that

have been issued, but are not yet effective in the

financial year of which the consolidated financial

statements were prepared, have not been early

adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Disclosure Initiative
(Amendments to
HKAS 1)

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to

HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle!

Presentation of Financial
Statements'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'
Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to HKAS 1) —
Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income
from equity accounted interests in associates and
joint ventures will be split between those items that
will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and
presented in aggregate as a single line item within
those two groups.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted
if either the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics
test) are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the objective
of the entity’s business model is both to hold and
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at fair value through profit or loss
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 (2014) retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2015

mE—T—

AFASA=tHLEFE

RAEBHFREE
A &)

(b)

B BB 1 5K 2 2 95T
BT E R R
8 (4)

BB T ERIFE 10
SEREBSIERE28%5
(1BET) —REEZ AR

ENAH A RS
ETAEE

“EN

TR B B BRI
BNRREEDELEY
FABER B THRRZ
Wk ERREE -ERX5

HR—IBER - RIZBRER
EREREE R
BERGHRTEK—IEE
B2 EE  AEZARTHE
BAREERAE D ERE
BN R 2 HERSHERIRES 5
E18

BB B HRE ERE 115
(IB5]) — L EXK
BmZ Bil R FE

EZ%f RIREE BRYE

BRGED M%B
%%?‘ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%&
FAERIZE3N [ XA 6
PR E 2 X150 AR
ZZERIZ Fr A TR A © firi %
R E 2 BB X
=LA RIEABH
R &R E 357 2 R A
NN DRVA=S 315
==

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of
the principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
when it acquires an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in that standard.
The principles of HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the
formation of a joint operation if an existing business
as defined in that standard is contributed by at least
one of the parties.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 step
approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is
satisfied
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

(0

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and
guantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Save as the main changes described above, the
Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group's financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation
of financial statements apply to the Company in this
financial year.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(9]

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements (continued)

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group's financial position or performance, however,
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, impacts on the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. For example,
the statement of financial position of the Company
is now presented in the notes to the financial
statements rather than as a primary statement and
related notes to the statement of financial position
of the Company are generally no longer presented.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for
investment property and certain financial assets
and liabilities, which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’'s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up
to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor's share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount of
the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.
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The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where

there is a contractual arrangement that confers

joint control over the relevant activities of the

arrangement to the Group and at least one other

party. Joint control is assessed under the same

principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint

arrangements as either:

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
or

Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint

arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;
The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;
The contractual terms of the joint

arrangement agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts are
adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition
changes in the joint ventures’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses. Profits or
losses arising on the transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the joint
venture. The investors’ share in the joint venture's
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
venture. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred they are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Company's interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group’s presentation currency, have been converted
into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.11). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Factory buildings Over the term of the leases
or estimated

useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Commercial buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 4 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17% — 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-
of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

3.1

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments made
to acquire land held under an operating lease. They
are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a
lease and the lease is an operating lease is detailed
in note 3.17. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease/right
of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
mining right, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are subject to impairment testing.
They are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Any impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the assets in the CGU, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. A regular way purchase is a purchase
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the

rights to receive cash flows from the investments

expire or are transferred and substantially all of

the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed

to assess whether there is objective evidence of

impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment

loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which are managed
and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management
strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

O
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3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(@

(ir)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
Joss (continued)

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payment that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include

non-derivative financial assets that are

either designated to this category or do
not qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets. All financial
assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising
from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised

in other comprehensive income and

accumulated separately in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below)

and foreign exchange gains and losses on

monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss. Interest calculated using the

effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity

securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and

derivatives that are linked to and must

be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses

at each reporting date subsequent to initial

recognition.
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At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economics or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

o a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets

include observable data indicating that there is a

measurable decrease in the estimated future cash

flows from the group of financial assets. Such

observable data includes but not limited to adverse

changes in the payment status of debtors in the

group and, national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

0] Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an

impairment loss on loans and receivables

carried at amortised cost has been incurred,

the amount of the loss is measured as the

difference between the asset’s carrying

amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows (excluding future credit

losses that have not been incurred)

discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate (i.e. the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The amount of the loss is recognised in profit

or loss of the period in which the impairment

occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

(ir)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial assets has been
recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset's acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-
sale are not recognised in profit or loss.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

3.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

The cost of property under development comprises
the acquisition cost of land, construction costs,
professional fees, other direct expenses and
capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3.23).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related companies, convertible note, financial
guarantee liabilities, loan from a controlling
shareholder, obligation under financial leases, bank
loans and derivative financial instruments.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3.23).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

() Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank
loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

~l
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ir)

Convertible notes that contain liability and
equity components, and early redemption
options derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain liability, conversion option and early
redemption option (which is not closely
related to the host contract) are classified
separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument. At date of issue, the fair value of
a similar liability with similar early redemption
option is determined (the “combined
instrument”). The difference between the
fair value of the convertible notes and
the fair value of the combined instrument
representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity is
included in convertible note equity reserve.
The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is determined after deducting
the fair value of the early redemption
option from the fair value of the combined
instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ir)

Convertible notes that contain liability and
equity components, and early redemption
options derivative (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the
option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Group, will
remain in the convertible note equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated
in the convertible note equity reserve will
be transferred to share capital). Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
note equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Xe)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ir)

(iir)

(iv)

Convertible notes that contain liability and
equity components, and early redemption
options derivative (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability, equity and early redemption option
components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged
to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.

Finance lease payables

Finance lease payables are measured at
initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments.

Other financial liabilities other than derivative
financial instruments

They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Derivative financial instruments

3.17

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly
to profit or loss for the year.

Lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

Lease (continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance lease, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
is included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Lease (continued)

Assets leased under operating leases as the lessees

The total rental payable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The up-front payments are amortised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis and the amortisation
is charges to profit or loss. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Share capital

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622
came into operation on 3 March 2014. Under the
Ordinance, shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Considerations received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014 is
credited to share capital. Commissions and expenses
are allowed to be deducted from share capital under
S.148 and S.149 of the Ordinance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable for the sale of

goods, net of rebates and discounts. Provided that

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as

follows:

0]

(ii)

sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold. This is usually taken at the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;

sale of property is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have been transferred to the
purchasers and the Group retains neither
continuing involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over property under development.
The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of
possession of properties to the purchaser
when properties’ hand-over confirmation is
executed by the Group and the purchaser.
Deposits and disbursements received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under deposits received;

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

3.21

(iii) interest income, on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method; and

(iv) dividend income, when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group's employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme"”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.

~l
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FTHIE 575 7 Short-term employee benefits
EEZFBRENNERE Employee entitlements to annual leave are
ZRER - AEEREE recognised when they accrue to employees. A
HEAHIEEEEREZ provision is made for the estimated liability for
RR 75 B 4 2 SE (R 2 (st annual leave as a result of services rendered by
BEEDEE- employees up to the reporting date.
FE 2 RANA R R ER Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
FERRS THER- sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
3.22 AR R ERE 2 RN 3.22 Share-based compensation

R-ZFET_F+—AtH
BETHR_ZTRF—
A—BRAREB BN
Bein RERE 2 RS
EHBREER - AR E
REREREMAERS
HE S RA AR S
B AR BETE 2 T

£

IR ERIARR D AR EL
Z IR AR R
RIGHIRE N FEE
I 2 PR AR A T AR
BRET AREENRD
B EVE R - Q0 MBR (1A
FMIGRB G (PIma
MEE N RHERRBR)
ZRE-

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).



Annual Report 2015 “F

B EMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m 275

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE-_Z-—AFA=THILFE

[
HEH

BRTBURE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

N
T
N\

3.22 LR ABER RN

3.22 Share-based compensation (continued)

(%)

11 57 B R AF AL AR - PR A
Bin RER 2 RN R
HNEBRSERRFX
MR Z IR T AR
RERER  ZFmME R
REBH2HEARA
i*@#ﬁ%ﬁééﬁ%

RREE #HaNZBR
%ﬁﬁgﬁ%%M°hm
BIRHER  AIBRMAX
SRFEHNRE AT E
Bz H&EGB NEB
HINFER - FE B R B 1%
HEFATBRYRE
BRATAHAE 2R&
WERE TP RERE
HEBRATAHAEA
BN ERIEEE AEE
B RfEE -

TT{E BB AR RS « SR BTN

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised,

AR 2 & 5w R the amount previously recognised in reserve will
)\H§i$ i = R be transferred to share capital. After vesting date,
BB ERERER when the vested share options are later forfeited or

QU ERE BARTT
(£ - SRR IR

B2 S ESHBARE R
e

are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

O
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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3.24 Accounting for income taxes
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income. Where the consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 3.18 if
and when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Government grants

3.27

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.
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327 DEHER(E) 3.27 Segment reporting (continued)

REBECE DA TAIZ25H

£

- RFREHEER

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and

BEEGREEMHNEA trading of fine jewellery and diamonds
— MERE = Property investment
— IR - Mining operation
- K& - Investment

NS Em KRB ERT

Each of these operating segments is managed

%“é?\@ﬁ?ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ separately as each of the product and service lines
= AR EESHE requires different resources as well as marketing
BTEHBYET A approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
DESEEE (WE) R carried out at arm'’s length prices.

N EBIBET

AEBERBEBUBRE
HERIESRBIE2 | A
REZFTEBCRBERE
BRMBHREERREZ

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that the share of

B s N A E AR results of associates and joint ventures accounted
MEDARE R VR A BR 2 FE (I BS for using the equity method, certain finance costs,
M“T&/\%ﬁiiﬁ income tax expense and corporate income and

ETRERA  FEHHR
SXARAFEERRBE
MEEDHZRIEE 2
NEMWA R jfﬁﬁﬁ
REREEDHZEESE

==
4 o

expenses which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

~l
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27

3.28

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests in
associates and interests in joint ventures. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, loan from
a controlling shareholder, financial guarantee
liabilities, provision for tax, deferred tax liabilities
and corporate liabilities, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

O
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the duration
and extent to which the fair value of specific investment
is less than its cost are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral security
and the past collection history of each customer. The
management of the Group reassesses the estimation at the
reporting date.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE_Z-NFA=THIFE

m- BREE s RAE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(%)

FE W ROIRR BB (F)

EAREEEERREBEESK
IR - 2 FRIRE B PTRTIR
BpEE-WMAKREER (HE
RIACEREREE) <M BRR
EARERERERHEERE
XBBE - RIRBEZA B R E
fge

FERE

REERERFHFEMT 2R
eBR AREEFEEFEEZ
REAMY K FE 2 REERR
BB ETFEELR - RE
A BBER AL KRS -
WS & T & A #RFEZ RIS
b RIRJREZRIEH BRSNS

RIEEMGE

REREEH EFHMARE
ZHERARE Z REEER S
B2 RERN - LIRS FE
ERIRENR - FRigE 2 A FE
BB BEAERMUSEERE
REEEIT 2 A BB HibF
H—RAMSEEREMT-
OB BRI E RS 2 (2

AR EEAAELERS HA]
HIRREEAFEZAAERER

B/ 488
=

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables (continued)

When the Group’s management determines the customers
are uncollectable, they are written off against the provision
made. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group,
on whose account provision for impairment has been made,
were improved and no impairment of their ability to make
payments were noted, reversal of provision for impairment
may be required.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Valuation of mining right

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s mining right so as to
assess whether there are any indicators of impairment at
each reporting date. The fair value of the mining right is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
recent comparable transactions undertaken in the Mainland
China which generally represent the best estimate of
the market value. Any changes in economic conditions
and mineral prices and the availability of comparable
transactions may materiality affect the estimation of the fair
value of mining right.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Valuation of financial guarantee contract

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique in order to measure the fair value of
the provision of financial guarantee contract to the wholly-
owned subsidiary of its joint venture during the year ended
30 June 2015. The fair value of the financial guarantee
contract is estimated by an independent professional valuer
based on the probability of default of the borrower.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technigue utilised are:

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair values:

o Investment property
o Available-for-sale financial assets
o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note 16
and note 48.5 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Company'’s chief operating decision-
maker that are used to assess performance and allocate
resources.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
have identified the Group’s four business lines as operating
segments as further described in note 3.27.

Certain comparative figures on the measurement of the
segment results have been restated to conform to the
current year's presentation.

ul
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I pEHER 8 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(@) HEBoEb (@)  Business segment
R 2B EER
REREEHRER NERE RREH 4] B
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery Property Mining
and diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
fér  TEr fér  TEr  fEr TEr fEr TAr fEr TEn
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSUO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSU00  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKST00
(&&5]) (8 E5) (%5
(restated) (restated) (restated)
Al Seqment revenue:
BEFANRER/  Sees tolievenue fiom
BHEENAEE  extemal parties 715595 848,601 - - 1385 17339 1460 2163 730900 868,103
i Seqment results 3$38%6 26005 327813 9185 (332049) (1395 3212 1882 932 3137
DR AZER ZRH Share-based compensation o) @14
AOREX Unallocated expenses (1.888) (2900
BHEERAEZE  home arsing from amortising
HEEZBA the finandal quarantee liablties 2884 2481
REHNA Finence cost (1002) %)
EHASREEE  Share of results of oint ventures M 404
BEERAER  Profit before income tax 65158 51971
R 2 EER
BEREERER ERE RREH #g &4
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery Property Mining
and diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
fér  TAr  FEr  TEr fEr AT fEr TAr fEr AT
HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO0D — HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKST00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSD00  HKS 000
AHEE Segment assets 400803 419493 1014224 581057 852473 1165376 19,618 42933 2287118 2,208859
IASLEZES  Interestsin joint ventures 748386 573224
ReREESE  Cashand cash equivalents 55641 78124
ERiREE Deferred tax assets 58 6109
AABATEE  Unalocated corporate assets M 367
gEOE Total assets 3,007,489 2,866,683
AHakE Segment liabilties 127904 155472 69292 5000 40636  406% 51949 53473 289781 255347
RIER Bank loans 468,634 411,126
[ERERELZ  Loanfioma contraling
-6 sharefolder 153,060 95,037
SRERER Financia quarantee liabilfes 701 8200
HERE Provison for tax 4760 4291
EEHEAR Deferred tax liabilties 169862 245437
APHAAEE  Unalocated comorate liabiites 6,118 99
gEeE Total liabiliies 1,099,418 1020457

&
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B FEER 2 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(@) HXBoE (&) (@)  Business segment (continued)

Rt HiE RER

RRGRENRER KRS Ba

Design, manufacturing,

marketing and trading

of fine jewellery Mining
and diamonds operation Consolidated
2015 2014 215 2014 215 2014
Ffé#r  TEr Fér AT 7y

HKS000 kS 000

HKS000 HKSO00 HKS 000

HKS000 XS 000

EAWER:  Othersegment information:

nz BER Depreciation o propery,

RETE plant and equipment (6,705)
THEREESE  Amortisation of land use rights (109)
R Amortiation of mining right =
REMFLTEZ  Change i fair value of

‘ Investment property = -

FE—EEE  Gain on debt extinguishment

DRFBHELE  arising from recogniton of

ZEBEERE  amount duetoarelted

company = -
TEEBTIEZ  Fairvalue gan on derivative

AT ENE financial intruments 181 74
WATERTABS  Fairvalue gain on financal assets

LEBEEL at fair value through profitor

AYENE loss = =
TARZEED  Fairvalueloss on redemption

EREY option of convertile note

ATEER - -
HENE HER  Gain on dsposal of propery,

REo ks plant and equipment 28513 7l
HiAnE BER  Loss on witeoff of property

RELEE plant and equipment (24 (679
HE-RMBAFZ Gainon disposal of a subsicary

LG 1261 -
HEMEEEZ  Lossondsposal of

SBEEZEE  anldbleforsale

financial assets - -
TREEZEBEE Impaiment loss on
HEER avalable-forscle
financial assets - -
REEFESE  Impaimentloss on mining right - =
0% BERRE  mpament loss on property,

RERE plant and equipment = -
REEUGTERE  Reversal of provison for

1] long-term receivables - 1,000
ZRRNFERE  Provsion for trade receivables ) )
FEEE Provision for inventories (1864)  (1,1%)
HSKA Interestincome - =
ST Inerest expenses = =
Ve Addtions to non-curent

AYEE segment assets 530 4461

(1.802) (1,800
(1362)  (1,35)
(1229 (1,074

3,880

(304,707) =

(8,408) =

(3,536) (3,315)

88 313

(8507)  (791)
(1471) (1465
(129 (1,074

333454 14544

- 380

181 74
6338 2237
= ")
28513 1

(224) (675)

1,261 =

(549) =

(@834 07

(304,707) =
(8,408) =

- 1000

(401) (54)
(1.864)  (1,1%)
L] 128

(353%) (31

4857 26286
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group's segment revenue from external
customers and its non-current assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) are
divided into the following geographical areas.

REMRERZWE
Revenue from
external customers

2015 2014
F#ETT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB (FBAEM) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 111,153 148,263
=M North America 251,118 232,563
BN K AR R Europe and Middle East 331,749 444,890
H {th i [ Other locations 36,880 42,387
=1 Total 730,900 868,103
FFBEE

Non-current assets
2015 2014
F#T FE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB (EREATER) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 481,264 593,063
ES United Kingdom 5,175 5,933
b B K e Mainland China 1,602,443 1,763,641
H fib b [& Other locations 10 42
&EEr Total 2,088,892 2,362,679
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I TEMER 2 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEER (&) (b)  Geographical information (continued)
A EW s E R TIR B R P The revenue information above is based on the
ZHETEID o IERENE location of the customers. The geographical location
E(emTAREERE of the non-current assets (other than financial
BERIN 2 HIBAETY instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the
RIEEEER TR fmE physical location of the assets.
/]_j\ o
PITESEEASEERE The executive directors determine the Group is
FrEmES  HRARE domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
| 2 42 B AT Group's principal office.
FTEFEFEH Information about major customers
RESEERF ((HRRIK Revenue from each of the major customers, which
#10%8 A E&) 2 s amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is
T set out below:
2015 2014
FiE&T FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
EFEH Customer A 145,973 245,294
BEZ Customer B M N/A 111,219
EFER Customer C 75,261 TEA N/A

KERBEBES 2N
2EBE TR
R EERE
REE 2R

The revenue from these major customers was all
derived by the business segment engaging in design,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
jewellery and diamonds.
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6. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents

the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts, interest income and dividend

income from investments.

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue is as follows:

2015 2014

FET FE T

HK$’000 HK$ 000

HE B m Sale of goods 715,595 848,601
HE SR Sale of gold ores 13,845 17,339
FEUA Interest income 32 128
K& Z B A Dividend income from investments 1,428 2,035
730,900 868,103
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7. FINANCE COSTS

2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FERAX: Interest charges on:
RITE > Bank loans* 10,843 9,209
ERBRRER 2 ERZ Interest expenses on loan from
FEMAZ a controlling shareholder 1,963 1,389
BEHERECREER Finance charges on obligation under
finance leases 65 45
FERTRAE A RIFIBIEL 2 Imputed interest expenses arising from
FEEF B amounts due to related companies 5,252 5,533
AR =R 2 FESRFIE Y Imputed interest expenses on
(fzE=+=) convertible notes (note 32) 71 326
BB ERKA Total borrowing costs 18,194 16,502
VRPN =R =¥ | avd Less: Bank loan interest capitalised in
RITERF L
—EWE (MFE+HX) — investment property (note 16) (2,587) (4,262)
—BREPYE — property under development
(PFE=+=) (note 22) (2,050) -
13,557 12,240
* ERITERZBERES £ 2 This represents the finance costs on bank loans, including

BRBER B Wﬁﬁ%zz
HEEERBH HAIZ
ERBERBELZ EHER
%‘é T—RFENA=1H

B HARERERK
Xzﬂ%% K2 F B REA
10,843,000/ 7T (= ZF — Y
£ :9,209,000/87T) °

term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause

in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments dates

set out in the loan agreements. For the year ended 30

June 2015, the interest on bank loans which contains a

repayment on demand clause amounted to approximately

HK$10,843,000 (2014: HK$9,209,000).
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8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

—
N

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZNER B B BT 1S B A A1) 48 The Group's profit before income tax is
il ?ﬁi/ (FFA)LAREB arrived at after charging/(crediting):
P
BEEHFEERKA Cost of inventories sold 598,073 726,705
W BERZRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
—BEEE — owned assets 8,139 7,698
—HEEE — leased assets 368 213
8,507 7,911
1% BRI B & Auditor’s remuneration 1,180 1,234
T Hb{E ARG (FisE+3)  Amortisation of land use rights
(note 15) 1,471 1,465
PRIBRE S (1) Amortisation of mining right (note 17) 1,229 1,074
LEHE T REFZ Minimum lease payments under
HEBE operating leases on land and
buildings 4,762 4,652
FEREE Provision for inventories* 1,864 1,196
TEREN —HEBEL FIE  Gain on debt extinguishment arising
PEE & 2 [E75)B B &R from recognition of
(MEE="(b)) amount due to a related company
(note 30(b)) - (3,880)
AT ERAER Fair value gain on financial assets
SREE 2 N FEKE at fair value through profit or loss (6,338) (2,237)
Al SRR R R 42 0 2 Fair value loss on redemption options of
NEEEE (HE=1+=) convertible note (note 32) = 7
PTESMT A AFEMKE  Fair value gain on derivative
—REE¥EH financial instruments
/ — forward currency contracts (181) (74)
RIE H E51E (s ) Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) 5,662 (8,223)
HEME - WE &2 WE  Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (28,513) (77)
s — B AR 2 s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(B EEP++) (note 47) (1,261) -
AT f B Government grants* (598) (293)
B 5 W GIE R Provision for trade receivables (note 24)
(PFzE=—+pa) 401 542
R EApE W R IB B A E O Reversal of provision for long-term
receivables - (1,000)
MWD BERRZRMEZEE  Loss on write-off of property,
plant and equipment 224 675
* FRZIFERB T ARE & Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost
BakHEMmeEla®R 2 of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of
[SHERA] A profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
# BB EE /K BEITIF™ & Government grants are mainly received from ;TFIMHiE T [&
BITRERER 2 FKIE #OEAR3#E /F for one of the Group's subsidiaries in respect
It T5 B R A &R B — R T B A of business activities carried on in this area. There are no
AEZRETEFED -85 unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these
R B0 B R B AT IR sk sk grants.
A -



Annual Report 2015 “F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE-_Z-—AF A=THILFE

A BEH GRE) 9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

A X

BENESHRIIAERFEERES Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
B4 2 T R BOS Rl R B R 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
16.5% (ZZ — % :16.5% ) arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
ST 8 o H fib i [ B R B F) < B assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
RS B E EBE 2 alE rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
RERBFEACMEGTE  WiR operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
BEa AR 2 RITEN 7 practices in respect thereof.

BREHIMED -

2015 2014
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BN HAF 18 Current tax
B Hong Kong 102 635
B PRC 604 572
NEFE (BERE), (Over)/Under-provision
BEDE in prior years (337) 291
369 1,498
REFIB (E=1+5) Deferred tax (note 35)
KEE Current year (76,548) (266)
FRe®i (%) Bz Total income tax (credit)/expense (76,179) 1,232
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9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(continued)

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2015 2014
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B TS A4 B VA Profit before income tax 65,158 51,971
AT E16.5% Tax on profit before income tax,
—Z=—[UF:16.5% )5t & calculated at the statutory rate of
Z B BTS2 A A A I8 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 10,751 8,575
REAMENEAEREEZ Effect of different tax rates of
MEARTRBE 22 subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions (27,673) 50
EhEEtEFERZ Tax effect of share of results of
BT joint ventures (6,884) (6,649)
TR RS 2 s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,505 2,135
IR A 2 TS o & Tax effect of non-taxable income (61,728) (4,351)
REFHHUNEFE Tax effect of prior years' tax losses
HIEEE RS E utilised this year (1,679) (1,537)
RERREBRZBEFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 6,943 2,712
REREGREZRHE 2 HRETE  Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised (77) 6
LAFERE (BERE) (Over)/Under-provision in prior years
BiET R (337) 291
FRAER (Be) FHX Income tax (credit)/expense for the year (76,179) 1,232

+ - B2

EETEENFARMNEAAE

T JOF )

10. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividends

during the year (2014: Nil).
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

2015 2014
FiET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
RABEG AELET] Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company 141,571 50,580
AR EE ~ EER | B Imputed interest expenses on
convertible note 71 326
AR IR IR N E B2 Fair value loss on embedded options
NHEBE of convertible note - 7
Rt AR E4E 2 FES= T B, Profit attributable to owners of the
B N o R AR E= R A Company before imputed interest
BIEHE Y N EERRTY expenses on convertible note and
EATEG AEIESF fair value loss on embedded options
of the convertible note 141,642 50,913
e H
Number of shares
2015 2014
AUGTESRERNER 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
357 IR AR 1 & shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 6,347,942,351 5,110,656,270
TORIED &2 & Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
BETakeow® shares in respect of
— Al AR SRR (FEEG)) — convertible note (note () 478,010,094 1,710,526,316
— B AR (PIEEG)) — share option (note (i) 9,033,987 =
AUGtEGREBEEFN 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
3 AR N #E 19 & shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 6,834,986,432 6,821,182,586

ul
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HE_ZT—FRAFK-_ZT—N
FXNA=ZtHLEEE"
BREBERFSEDERAE
A RIHEE AW E RN T
141,571,000/ 78 (== — Y
£ :50,580,0007% 7T) (45
BARBATARZE 2 &
BHNEMAX kAT BRRKER
RAEEEZ A TEERE
I (2033 ) A8 3 2 DA R B
AR EIREETESE
#7322 (141,642,000
7t (ZZ—/H4F : 50,913,000
L) ) ) RERENLH
BERITEERMETF
5 #16,834,986,432/% (=
T — U4 :6,821,182,586
B) (BNEREARRFE
RATA Z LB miETEH
#6,347,942,351% (=&
— P4 :5,110,656,270/%)
A AR VEFT (S B 3R
478,010,094 7] 32 f% = &
%29,033,9871p BE I #E (==
— P04 : 1,710,526,31615 A
BMIREE) 2 HEEHAR)
FTHE-

BE-_ZT-HNFAA=TH
LFE - FESRESAET
fiy I 2 (R AR U AR M AT 452
FTT RS A & 5 ok R E
RHE ©

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Note:

@

For the year ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, diluted
earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$141,571,000 (2014: HK$50,580,000) and adjusted to
reflect the imputed interest expenses on the convertible
note and fair value loss on the embedded options of
convertible note, where applicable, after adjustments to
reflect the effect of deemed exercise or conversion of
convertible note, which was HK$141,642,000 (2014:
HK$50,913,000) and on the adjusted weighted average
of 6,834,986,432 (2014: 6,821,182,586) ordinary
shares outstanding during the year, being the weighted
average of number of ordinary shares of 6,347,942,351
(2014: 5,110,656,270) used in basic earnings per share
calculation and adjusted for the effect of deemed exercise
or conversion of convertible notes of 478,010,094 and
share options of 9,033,987 (2014: convertible notes of
1,710,526,316) existing during the year.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the computation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of
the share options as the exercise of the share options was
anti-dilutive.
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'

EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 13)

2015 2014
FiET FET
HK$000 HK$000
TE #He RUREWFHZE  Wages, salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 93,592 89,021
RARAE FIFT S 51 Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes 9,069 8,591
VAR A7 5 Bttt 2 s B Share-based compensation 470 2,114
103,131 99,726
+= - EEFMRANES 13. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND
HFATZENE EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS
(a) EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments

BEEBRAAIEH (5
622%) ([ZI&HI1)E
38MERAR (EEES
Mz &R #01 (622G
) (IZAM)EEZ

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to S.383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
(the “Ordinance”) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) (the “Regulation”) is as follows:

BEHMOT
2015 2014
F#T FETT
HK$'000 HK$000
EEwe Directors’ fees 300 300
e RN EYWARIZE  Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 11,949 9,564
TEAT Bonus 622 580
RIREFIFTEI B3R Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes 435 403
ARSI B EME ZF58  Share-based payment 470 2,114
s Total emoluments 13,776 12,961

~l
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

P& - directors during the year were as follows:
BE_F—HAEAA=tTHLEE
Year ended 30 June 2015
He 2HER R DT
ESHg B & el AERE ERHR @t
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’  and benefits benefits  Share-based
Fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$'000
(FHEEG) (Pt (i)
(note (i)) (note (ii)
niTgs: Executive directors:
FE2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,600 100 174 - 3,874
g\ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,250 185 101 - 2,536
REZ Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,017 84 46 - 1,147
BEL Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 1,752 144 78 - 1,974
BE (M5 i) Wong Edward Gwon-hing
(note (ii)) - 1,326 109 18 470 1,923
RS (Mg (i) Yam Tat Wing (note (i) - 2,004 - 18 - 2,022
FUnES: Non-executive director:
70l (BizEy) Fang Gang (note (iv)) 100 - - - - 100
BiFsmES: Independent non-executive
directors:
RBR Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - - 50
R Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
e Sze Irons 50 - - - - 50
Kini# Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - - 50
&t Total 300 11,949 622 435 470 13,776
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+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HALTZENE @) EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) EEME (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

BE_Z—NFA=THLFE
Year ended 30 June 2014

5e 2R RINER] PARRAR &
BSHE ENH& bzl SHElfE  BRZAR @t
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors'  and benefits benefits ~ Share-based
Fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total

T TiET TET T TiET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

GO R0

(note (i)) (note (ii)
BiTES: Executive directors:
RE2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,600 100 174 - 3,874
\:3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,190 200 99 - 2,489
BREH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 981 130 44 705 1,860
R Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 1,689 150 76 705 2,620
EATE (BizHi) Wong Edward Gwon-hing (note (i) - 436 = 5 = 441
RS (ki) Yam Tat Wing (note (ii) - 668 - 5 704 1377
FHITES: Non-executive director:
NGB Fang Gang (note (v)) 100 = - = - 100
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive

directors:

RBA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 = - - - 50
BRimE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
e Sze Irons 50 - - = - 50
KR8 Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 = - - - 50
@t Total 300 9,564 580 403 2,114 12,961
LEERE LTI 2 BB 5] K Comparative information has been prepared with
ZAR B 2GR B - reference to the provisions in the Ordinance and the

Regulation.
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13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) The bonus is determined by the individual
performance of the directors.

(i) These amounts represent the estimated value of

share options granted to the directors under the
Company'’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the
accounting policies for share-based payments as
set out in note 3.22 to the financial statements.
Further details of the options granted are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

(iii) Wong Edward Gwon-hing and Yam Tat Wing were
appointed as executive directors of the Company
with effect from 1 March 2014.

(iv) Fang Gang resigned as non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 25 September
2015.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, one of the
directors, Mr. Fang Gang, waived his emoluments
for the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2014 which
amounted to HK$100,000 and HK$100,000
respectively. Saved as disclosed, there was no other
arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years.
No directors waived any emoluments during the
years.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.
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13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2015 were all directors
(2014: three) of the Company and details of their
emoluments are disclosed above. During the year
ended 30 June 2014, the remaining two non-
directors were eventually appointed as director of
the Company in 2014, details of their emoluments
of being non-directors, highest paid individual were
as follows:

2015 2014
Fi#&T FETT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Fa R REYAZE  Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind - 2,184
TE4T Bonus = 135
RORAEFIFT S 3K Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes - 20
- 2,339

MESBNF TSR

The number of non-directors highest paid individuals

FEEHZRT AT AZD whose emoluments fell within the following bands
e was as follows:
AE
Number of individuals
2015 2014
= % 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 - 1

1,000,001 T E
1,500,000 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

REBEEZE-_T—-WF A
=tRIFE AEEN
ERMESZSHA LN
ERIBN S B DIAZ A AN
AR B 7 B2 X R B
fE-

During the year ended 30 June 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the two
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.
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+0 - ¥R - BB RERE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RFREE ) Rl %E-
BELH NERE RWEE RBREREE RBRRE EEIR it
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings and equipment
Leasehold leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
land  improvements structures  machinery vehicles in progress Total
FET TAT FAT FET TAT FAT FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
REF-ZELA-B  At1luly2013
A Cost 6,160 98,801 44,294 61,512 59,587 7823 28,177
ZHHERRME Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (2918) (54,686) (40) (53,467) (50,824) - (161,935)
REFE Net carrying amount 3202 4,115 44,254 8,045 8,763 7823 116,242
HEZE-ME/RA=TH Yearended 30 June 2014
LEE
EREFH Opening net carmying amount 3,4 44115 44,254 8,045 8,763 7823 116,242
HJ*‘\E Additions - 1,491 1,256 - 3,048 1,797 1592
HE /M Disposals/Witten off - (439) - = (544) = (983)
A/ (i) Transfer in/fout) - - 813 - - 813) -
Vil Depreciation (102) (3,464) 47) (1,000 (3,298) - (7911)
B AR Exchange realignment - 732 127 20 9% 3 1,000
EXRETH Closing net carrying amount 3,140 42,435 46,403 7,065 8,067 8,830 115,940
RZF-HERA=TH  At30June2014
A Cost 6,160 99,758 46,490 61,629 59423 8830 282,90
ZHHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (3,020) (57,323) 87) (54,564) (51,356) - (166,350)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,140 42,435 46,403 7,065 8,067 8,830 115,940
BEZS-3%7xA=tH Yearended 30 June 2015
LER
FEEFHE Opening net carrying amount 3,140 42435 46,403 7,065 8,067 8,830 115,940
ME Additions - 1,860 - 29 3475 794 6,158
HE/Hi DisposalsWitten off (634) (223) - - ®) - (865)
Tﬁ% Depreciation (88) (4219 (54) (922) (3,224) - (8,507)
REEE Impairment loss - (2,687) (3,092) (260) (275) (2,094) (8408)
AR Exchange realignment - (309) 212 30 €) 4 63)
EXREFH Closing net carrying amount 2,418 36,857 43,469 5,98 7,998 157 104,255
RZF-RERRA=TH  At30June 2015
KA Cost 5,052 100,006 46,708 61,206 61,780 9,665 284,417
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (2,634) (63,149) (3,239 (55,264) (53,782) (2,094) (180,162)
RETE Net carrying amount 2,418 36,857 43,469 5942 7,998 751 104,255
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+0 - % - BB R 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(&)

REEETYE  WFELRHR
REREFAREZEB 2 ReES
B UEERESEAENMER
#E LT RU(E T {d © 498,408,000
TLREEE B B ERUR A S E
Y BB R R BREE (Bt
Ft)e

RZE—RFASA=1H &&
%] AR TH ¥ ¥ 48 58 4916,357,000
BIL (ZZ — M4 18,166,000
Br)ZzETHELHEEFE
WER ERASEBRERZ —
BIBITEEME 2R (T
—F+N)e

RZZE—RFEASA=1+RH AE
ZEHCHEEERIERERE
A 2 & E /21,530,000 7T

—Z — Y4 : 685,000/ L) Z
-

(continued)

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group are
combined with the mining right under the CGU of the
mining operation for impairment assessment at that CGU
level. Impairment loss of approximately HK$8,408,000 was
allocated to write down the carrying value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment (note 17).

At 30 June 2015, the Group's certain leasehold land
and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately HK$16,357,000 (2014: HK$18,166,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 28).

At 30 June 2015, the carrying amount of motor vehicles
includes an amount of HK$1,530,000 (2014: HK$685,000)
in respect of assets held under finance leases.

« Tith{E R 15. LAND USE RIGHTS

REER L E R 2 = AT The Group's interests in land use rights represented prepaid
B ERE  ERAFEE operating lease payments and the movements in their net

o carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000
FYIRRE S Opening net carrying amount 40,083 41,440
FAHEHEEA Amortisation charge for the year (1,471) (1,465)
ME 5 8 B Exchange realignment 172 108
FRIRE S5 Closing net carrying amount 38,784 40,083
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SRS

H

HE-Z—RAFA=THILFE

+3H - LERE @ 15. LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)
RZE—RFASA=1H & At 30 June 2015, the Group's certain land use rights with
B BRm%E1,377,0008 0 (=& carrying amounts of HK$1,377,000 (2014: HK$1,413,000)
—PU4 1,413,000 ) 2 & T were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
T AR R EAARE the Group (note 28).
EER s —RIRTEERE &
#(ME=1+\) °

+75 - BEWE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REBIZEEHER B BRI
e EERNEEBE 2B YEER
SRR BERRIEE M E

?Zﬁﬁ%¥'ﬁﬁ%”¥@
RAGTEWIRIEEYHEFER
IHEo

REFEEMBHRRAREINZEEE

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the

BEHHMAT : consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:
2015 2014
Fi&T FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$000
FUREEE Carrying amount at beginning
of the year 581,000 543,500
NE Additions 35,699 18,694
ERME 2 RITE KT L Bank loan interest capitalised
(PEELE) (note 7) 2,587 4,262
AN EFARMG W SR Net gain from fair value adjustments 333,454 14,544
EREEPYFE Transfer to property under
(WHaE=+=) development (note 22) (506,700) =
FERIEE&HE Carrying amount at end
of the year 446,040 581,000

R=_ZFE—RAFA=+H8 5t
ABREMEZER LN ER
29,738,000/ 7T (= F — U £ -
27,151,000/ 7T ) °

As at 30 June 2015, included in investment property
was interest capitalised of HK$29,738,000 (2014:
HK$27,151,000).



Annual Report 2015 “F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE-_Z-—AF A=THILFE

+5 - ’REWE #) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

FR-EFZRER-AFE HE
— R BEIERRRENE
RgzWEz 8D ARES
ERBMEETEHEHNEZH
DYE TRERLEZHEER
B BRI D 2 ERIREYE
BEEMAE MR - —MF
T—AZt R BEFDRERFE
AZBERTVE -R_F—HF
NA=Z+HB AKEC KW HE
HELAMEZZERE -RE
MOBEZERTYEER %A
D ZIREYFE BB FTRIEED
TMERITRIERAR D E (TH
RITDRBRKEZREHER
HEEETHE SHZAFER
506,700,000/ 7T °

RZE—RFASA=FH #E&
VIZEBRANEITRENERELE
£X A I 4 % 1 18 /446,040,000
77t (ZZF—H4F : 581,000,000
BIT) o FISRE HE R ERIE
B2 harBK AN (BIEREX
N HEEBR BREKA HH
AR ) - 0 ET R 2 R v R K g%
BEHBEZHMEE - R
T—FE+— -+ NBEEH
RAMEE TS REBEZET
E-hAFANA=+HREEHHE
MELZAFERZSFED
332,306,000/ 7T K& 1,148,000/4
o0 (ZZ — U4 : 14,544,000%
To) EBAFAER -

During the year, the directors initiated a plan to sell a portion
of the property which was originally being developed for
future use as investment property. This portion of the
investment property under construction was reclassified to
property under development in inventory on 26 November
2014 as a result of the change in use which was evidenced
by substantive actions taken by the directors to market the
portion of the property for sale and also to commence the
necessary registration procedures for sale. The Group has
since successfully agreed the sale of a number of floors
of the said property as at 30 June 2015. The portion of
the investment property was revalued at a fair value of
HK$506,700,000 at the date of reclassification to property
under development by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited
("LCH"), an independent firm of chartered surveyors, on a
re-development basis by adopting the residual method.

Investment property was valued at 30 June 2015 by LCH
at HK$446,040,000 (2014: HK$581,000,000) on re-
development basis by adopting the residual method.
The residual method is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development including costs of
construction, professional fee, finance cost, associated costs
and an allowance for developer’s risk and profit from the
gross development value. Net fair value gain on revaluation
upon transfer of certain portion to property under
development on 26 November 2014 and subsequently up
to 30 June 2015 of HK$332,306,000 and HK$1,148,000
respectively (2014: HK$14,544,000) arising therefrom were
credited to profit or loss for the year.

ul



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE_Z-NFA=THILFE

(@)

+75 - BEWER @) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

REEREME 2 A FEBES The fair value of the Group's investment property is a level
EREM R TERE - FAHEF 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

NATEGEREROT opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000

FYER (FIEEEE Opening balance (level 3 recurring

NFE) fair value) 581,000 543,500
NE Additions 35,699 18,694
BRI ZIRITERF & Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7)

(P7ELE) 2,587 4,262
N EFAEAB RS FE Net gain from fair value adjustments 333,454 14,544
EIREEPYE (FME=+=) Transfer to property under

development (note 22) (506,700) -
FERER (FIBREEH Closing balance (level 3 recurring
NEE) fair value) 446,040 581,000

MERFTIFEE ABZEZ  Change in unrealised gains or losses

FRARER W for the year included in profit or loss

B R for assets held at the end of the year 333,454 14,544
AEFTETIA EMIREWES The fair value measurement is based on the above
e nmoER (REERAR investment property’s highest and best use, which does not
IR ) AERE differ from their actual use.
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+75 - HEWER @) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

TRIEHBBNAEERE M The following table gives information about how the fair

NEEZER - value of the investment property is determined.

&E
Significant
EXEEBEHBANE unobservable inputs Range

2015 2014
B 5 REWE Price per square foot 24,000 T = 16,0008 T &
72,0007 JT 35,0007 7T
HK$24,000 to HK$16,000 to
HK$72,000 HK$35,000
ERRT 2 HBatEER Estimated construction and FFEAHR3,100%E T T 75 R2,000%7T
B E KR other professional HK$3,100 per HK$2,000 per
costs to completion square foot square foot

RHAENMRABEREMST 2 Estimated profit margin

EERbERS required to hold and
develop the investment 17% 18%
BEYrrRERAS AFER The higher the price per square foot is, the higher the fair
SRERpE &I value is. The higher the estimated construction and other
= ATERE -FERAEER professional costs are, the lower the fair value is. The higher
B2 EerfEERAS AT estimated profit margin required to hold and develop the
BERK- investment is, the lower the fair value is.
F N {h B BT I B E) o There were no changes to the valuation technique during
the year.

RZE—RAFASA=TH & As at 30 June 2015, the Group's investment property
£ B BR A & ®H446,040,0007% 7T with a carrying amount of HK$446,040,000 (2014:

—Z — Y4 :581,000,000/% HK$581,000,000) was pledged to secure a bank borrowing
T ZREMEEEER R granted to the Group (note 28).

AEEER ZRITEEZER
(MfsE=+/\) -
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+t - R

17. MINING RIGHT

2015 2014

FET FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

FYRRE R Opening net carrying amount 1,052,432 1,050,495

FAEHEEA Amortisation charge for the year (1,229) (1,074)
FRRERE Provision of impairment for the year (304,707) =
P& 5 S Exchange realignment 4,931 3,011
FRIRE R Closing net carrying amount 751,427 1,052,432
BEm4a%E Gross carrying amount 1,059,424 1,054,505

R Accumulated amortisation (3.290) (2,073)
ZETRE RS Accumulated provision for impairment (304,707) =
AR R Net carrying amount 751,427 1,052,432

LT Re BB 2 AR
16 BB E A TERE SR A
ZHEFREE

B B L B HERE AR
BB EAR « B 4 B R
A3 R AR A TR B
ST AR R S B RA R
17

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the mining

operation has been determined based on the measurement

to fair value less costs to sell.

The valuation of the CGU is carried out by Roma Appraisals

Limited, an independent valuer who holds recognised

and relevant professional qualifications and has recent

experience in the location and category of the mining right

being valued.
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B EMEE

++

RIEE @

RZE—RFASA=1+H BRE
EEBU 2 AT EREEXAT
EREHEERS RIETHE
R HEREELBEMATE
RERA B RBRIIAB LR
FHER 2 &IEMETRMRE-

ZEZ ERERE R A BN
NE

B ESERZ  50%E75%
THETEEE

BHBEERRE BR238VELE
(i §791.99%8 7T

HETEREIRZ T E
5 AT EAE KFHEEBER
BEHES AFENS-

BRIE R IE S At &
TERZ TEEEDBIN FA
EERMIL RS L FXE
B A E RN HEE MR 1T
B ADCE R ER -

KRZHMT S ESRARE
ENReELBEMZAIKE S
8 {4 51 /4633,610,00058 7T ¥
REZE-—T—AF~A=1+AHIL
FEEHNLRBEERESESL
BB 2 BB E518313,115,0007%8
T © A B 1B 18 T Y EMUR B R LA
&%% 5 K & A BRE(E 2 5
304,707,0007% 7T % 8,408,000/
TeoREBEXERBEETH
Kbt EE B RTHEE 8 E 2 &
@Jo

17.

MINING RIGHT (continued)

The fair value less costs to sell of the CGU as at 30 June
2015 was measured using recent sale and purchase
transactions under the market-based approach. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the CGU were based on the independent professional
valuer’s best estimate.

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were

as follows:

The range of uncertainty of 50% to 75%
estimated gold resources

Adjusted consideration to HK$23.87 per gram to

resources multiple HK$91.99 per gram

The higher the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold
resources is, the lower the fair value is. The higher the
adjusted consideration of resources multiple is, the higher
the fair value is.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year, except for taking into account the uncertainty
of estimated gold resources classified under relevant
authoritative guidelines. The independent professional
valuer exercises their professional judgement to estimate the
uncertainty of resources to improve the valuation technique.

With reference to the assessment, the directors are of
the view that the recoverable amount of the CGU of the
mining business is estimated to be HK$633,610,000 and
therefore, an impairment loss of HK$313,115,000 in respect
of the CGU of the mining business was identified for the
year ended 30 June 2015. The impairment loss is allocated
to write down the carrying amount of mining right and
property, plant and equipment by HK$304,707,000 and
HK$8,408,000 respectively. The impairment loss is primarily
due to change in the decline in gold price and the change of
the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold resources.

O
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T\ REE AR 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2015 2014

FET FET

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FE TR - R AR Unlisted shares, at cost = =

EiLEEFE Share of net assets 6,034 6,034

EE B Provision for impairment (6,034) (6,034)

2015 2014

Fi#T FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

JiE W Bt 8 /R R FUA Due from associates 1,259 1,259

BB Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259)

REBE-_Z-—hFR-_F—MF There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of

NA=THIEFEE - B e amounts due from associates during the years ended 30
ERAIRAZREBEHNES June 2015 and 2014.

@J o
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T\ REFERRZH#E R 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
(&)
JEWGRIE D EEA 2 8 RIRE The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
SRIERK o on demand.
B HEERA ZASEEE The summarised financial information of the Group's
Bt N a2 I E R - principal associate extracted from its management accounts

are as follows:

2015 2014
F#T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
WANHB=+H As at 30 June

EMENE E Non-current assets 296 298
MENEE Current assets 7,618 8,926
ERBEE Non-current liabilities = -
mEAE Current liabilities (734) (388)

HEANA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Wz Revenue 3,319 3,660
FAEE Loss for the year (1,699) (1,337)
H b2 E ks Other comprehensive income 43 29
2R ARRE Total comprehensive income (1,656) (1,308)
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N

+/\ - REFE AT Z R 18.

(%)

R-E—FEEAXA=+R B
B AR HENT

R BHRAMEARE
Particulars of paid-up
Name registered capital

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2015 are

as follows:
AL/ FEEEL
AR A E R FEREERA  TEXH
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and ownership interest

operations attributable to the Group Principal activities

FEEFEHARAR  BERBRAARE,0932447
General Jewellery (Shanghai)  Paid up capital of
Company Limited* RMB9,093,244

* FEMBEBLEEZEAME
BHARABRLERSELZ
HAppk 8 R BZE

EERR LA RREE QR
IBREFARMBBERRIRE
SAERAREREBERREE
FREZBRBLD EFZRR R
HEMBENR 2 FHBESEHR
IEER IR -

NS 36 REEHRERYE
Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing

and wholesaling

* Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.

The above associate of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the share of associates’
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
share of net asset of the associate by the Group. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Th NREEERZIER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 203,965 159,419
RIEH—HEaELELEY Deemed capital contribution to
a joint venture* 14,221 12,405
Y —HEECEZER Loans to a joint venture 530,200 401,400
748,386 573,224
BT —HEEREZERTER The loans to a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free
2R EEFEER = and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of
ERRZEERTBARREBH the directors, these loans are not repayable within twelve
BETT=EAAERE- months from the reporting date.
& BRAGBRDRIEH —BEE & The balance represented the deemed capital contribution
TtEZZEWNBARZH to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture,
& HERARRREZA A representing the fair value of the financial guarantee
HEITZRITEERE (M contracts provided by the Company to a bank for the
=t =) ARITIRE M B E banking facility entered by that company (note 33).
REKZATFE
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
e — & &SRB Due from a joint venture 155 169
EW I R EER 8 RAR The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
EREK o on demand.
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D

Th REEERZIER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(& (continued)
RZE—RAFAA=+H FZ Particulars of the principal joint ventures as at 30 June 2015
EELEZHBEAT are as follows:
"ML/ FEBER
&8 BEITRARE A REE FEEEZENL  FEXE
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of

Particulars of registration ownership interest
Name issued share capital and operations  attributable to the Group Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments 50,0008 8 R E & 1% EBRIES 50 RERR

Limited LER British Virgin Islands Investment holding
50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

ERERERAT EER10,00087T i 50 BRES
Multi-Minerals Limited Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Hong Kong Trading of mineral ores

REERE & B 3 Wealth Plus
Developments Limited ( [Wealth
Plus|) (REBRZES M
R RNBEBEE B IERE)
MEEERBRAR (REBT
M 8z By EEe) 9%k
B50% (ZZF— N4 :50% ) #
7= © Wealth Plus R BTR E R B R
RNRAIZEBEBH R RIREZER
RBEAE S &RTHERRE
EiRMtEzEa SR BEF
BFTHER 2 %A - fWealth Plus
REREEREBRAREZEHRFH
BRERHEECRIREEER
HEBZEE -REEBMBER
HERFNHR  ZEECERHS
HRAEELE WEFEAERE
RERE B E AR

The Group has 50% (2014: 50%) interests in joint ventures,
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”), a
separate structured vehicle incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating in Hong Kong, and Multi-Minerals
Limited, a separate structured vehicle incorporated and
operating in Hong Kong. The primary activities of Wealth
Plus and Multi-Minerals Limited are investment holding
and trading of mineral ores respectively. The contractual
arrangement provides the Group with only the rights to
the net assets of these joint arrangements, with the rights
to the assets and obligation for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement resting primarily with Wealth Plus and Multi-
Minerals Limited. Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements
are classified as joint ventures and have been accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method.
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THh -REELEZ#ES 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
KEBE 7 E KA &1 FEWealth The summarised financial information of Wealth Plus and its
Plus i H 2 & ME A 7] ([Wealth wholly-owned subsidiary (“Wealth Plus Group”), a material
Pluste B | ) 2 BT & BHEZ A K joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
BET AR B RE B SRS 2 IR amount included in the Group's consolidated financial
HEB 2 HENT statements are as follows:
Wealth Plus £ =
Wealth Plus Group
2015 2014
F T FETT
HK$°000 HK$000
RANB=+H As at 30 June
EMENEE Non-current assets 2,538,640 1,902,832
mBEE Current assets 29,591 86,309
EMBEE Non-current liabilities (2,014,652) (1,505,374)
mENa & Current liabilities (117,217) (140,130)
STAL#iFRIEZIEE ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
BehBEER Cash and cash equivalents 4,411 38,314
nEBEEE (TEEEZES K Current financial liabilities (excluding
H b A FRIE) trade and other payables) (25,668) (30)
SERBEE (TEEEMEN  Non-current liabilities (excluding
I K ) other payables and provision) (2,014,652) (1,505,374)
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(o))

Th REEdbFRZHER
(%)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

Wealth Plus £ &
Wealth Plus Group

2015 2014
FETT FAET
HK$000 HK$°000
BEANA=THLEEE For the year ended 30 June
Wz Revenue = =
F N F Profit for the year 83,442 80,588
Efemmiias Other comprehensive income 5,651 (278)
e Gy Total comprehensive income 89,093 80,310
FTALMRIAZIAR ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
e R E#H Depreciation and amortisation (100) (176)
FEHA Interest income = -
FEMXZ Interest expense = _
P15 Fi 2 Income tax expense (28,981) (36,510)
HAERREELEZ Reconciled to the Group's interests
g in the joint venture
EECEZEEFE Net assets of the joint venture 436,362 343,637
REE 2 BERER Group's effective interest 50% 50%
AEBELEEDELEFE Group's share of net assets of
the joint venture 218,181 171,819
HER Represented by:
BlheErEEERE Share of net assets of the joint venture 203,960 159,414
RIEHEEDELE Deemed capital contribution to
the joint venture 14,221 12,405
ARE &R Carrying amount 218,181 171,819
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Th REEEFZER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
REEFERGERFEZHBE Financial information of the joint venture that is immaterial
#} to the Group:
2015 2014
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEREEECIRES  Carrying mount of immaterial

joint venture 5 5
F A& A Profit for the year - _
H 2w Other comprehensive income = =
ZHEEEEE Total comprehensive income = =

"+ At EZEMEE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
FTRAEE  HAFE: Listed equity investments, at fair value:
B Hong Kong 8,062 13,444
HEapiplm (FzE@)) Elsewhere (note (a)) 1,006 10,619
9,068 24,063
JEETIRAIEE AN Unlisted equity investments,
(FHt3E(Q)) at cost (note () 19,092 11,339
B B Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
11,984 4,231
st Total 21,052 28,294
B ZTE Market value of listed investments 9,068 24,063
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0]

Zt - AHHEZEMEE
()

(a)

RZZE—ZTFHA=H"'&
ArEl—HEEZEREA
AIERERBR AR ([E
B ) E2Famous Key Holdings
Limited ([Famous Key | -
—RHAREBREZHSEM
K ZBRAA BHAR
ARTESFRE=ZEFEL
(TlRBL2E#HE)T
7 B F %  bA[AFamous
Keylt 85 & #£2,239,873
fEMacarthur Minerals
Limited ([MMS 1) B& 3 °
@ B - =B 75 EEMinmetals
Mining Corporation Limited
(IMinmetals | » —ER &
BHMKZz BRAR)ET
YR —MMEEHZHE AR
Minmetals{ #53,144,6540%
MMSH% {5 > MinmetalsE =
PR ) (W= /NI )
TESF EXLMHE K
RKEGEGHE EBR_F
——F=ZA=1+HEBMH
Famous Key & MinmetalsZ£1T
AJ AR S 4% - LATH (E3.0500
70 (185 124.3547%7T ) FERK
E 5,384,527 R MMSE& (7 ©
MMSE—FHIRINEXRZ Mm%
BIERZ G (= —NEF: %
MEBEHFRX ) L2 R
MAaE HEBXEBANR
MPEEPEN IR R A A EE
EEE 2 HBEAME -

PRI (ZF—MHF M)
2 ETIRARETMEFAKR
B Tk ERRA  AHKIE
R ETRAKEBRE"

I F N B &= R E S
84,834,000/ 7T (= Z —
£:2,077,000/87T) °

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade
Bloom"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Sing Chuk
(“Dr. Chan”), an executive director of the Company, to
acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares of Macarthur
Minerals Limited (“MMS") from Famous Key. On the same
date, Trade Bloom also entered into another sale and
purchase agreement with Minmetals Mining Corporation
Limited (“Minmetals”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, to acquire 3,144,654 shares
of MMS from Minmetals. Mr. Fang Gang, a director
of Minmetals, was also a non-executive director of the
Company. Having satisfied the terms and conditions of the
aforesaid agreements, the acquisitions of the 5,384,527
shares of MMS were completed on 30 March 2011 at
the market price of Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to
HK$24.354) by the issue of convertible notes to Famous
Key and Minmetals. MMS is an Australian company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (2014: Toronto Stock
Exchange) in Canada and its principal activity is exploration
and development of an area with significant prospective
iron-ore located in Western Australia.

There was a significant decline in the market values of
listed equity investments in overseas (2014: overseas)
during the year. The directors consider that such a decline
indicates that the listed equity investments have been
impaired and an impairment loss of HK$4,834,000 (2014:
HK$2,077,000) has been recognised in profit or loss for the
year.
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Zt - AR HEZEMEE
(%)

Hiat - (&)

© I _E TR AR A THIR A AR
FRER TR REALR
BRI E N ERNE RIS W
B BAFEZEE MG
ERESHFTZHEEEEE
R-Bt - E=ZTRALFE
TRERI EHIGT 2 - REE
E-—RER-FE-MENXA
=+ HIEFE EAARZ
FEETRRARE 2 AR
i3k

Zt+— - REBWFIER

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continueq)

(© The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less
provision for impairment as they do not have quoted
market prices in an active market and the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and
the probability of the various estimates is significant.
Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that the
fair value cannot be reliably measured. There was no
movement in provision for impairment in respect of
unlisted equity investments at cost during the years ended
30 June 2015 and 2014.

21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

2015 2014

k=3 F#ET FAET

Notes HK$'000 HK$°000

HEE Promissory notes () 11,449 11,449

i 5= HA & o B Other long-term receivables (b) 700 700

12,149 12,149

VERIEEEL Provision for impairment (12,149) (12,149)

KA R IBRE R 2 28 The movement on the provision for impairment of long-term
e receivables are as follows:

2015 2014

Kzt F#&ET FAET

Notes HKS$'000 HK$ 000

FOEER Balance at beginning of the year 12,149 13,149

& o] ) (B &5 18 Impairment losses reversed (b) = (1,000)

FRERR Balance at end of the year 12,149 12,149
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O

“+— - REIEWEIE (@)

(a)

R=ZZE—h&E~A=1+H
211,449,000 7Tt (=&
— PO 4 ¢ 11,449,000/ 7T) Z
L E R - 7,828,000/ 7T

— & — [0 4 : 7,828,000/
) BEEF - BB RARC
T —F+A—BESTHE
4 38 - 2 £23,621,00075 7T
(=ZZ— M4 : 3,621,000/
) BEERF 28 KAH
—EL-F=-A+ABED
T=FEE-ENEREE
EEZE BERAEEEE
2R (E ©

R=F—RE~A=1+A8"
ZEHABT —HWKE
AR 2700,0008 7T (=&
— PO 4F : 700,0005% 7T ) R 3R
BN ZEARE - EIET
RER-_ZE—RE~NA=1
HEE ZERZEIREAR
ZHBERIBERE ERUAE
FEELEZERE -REE
—E—MENA=ZTHILESF
B ZERERARIDEER
1,000,0007% 7t + 7 74 B 2
TR = H FE U SR IB R (B B 1
#80]1,000,00078 JT °

21.

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at 30
June 2015 (2014: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000 (2014:
HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and repayable
by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1 October
2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000 (2014:
HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by
13 annual instalments commencing on 15 March 2003. In
view of default in repayment of the promissory notes, a full
impairment was made in prior years.

As at 30 June 2015, the balance represents a shareholder’s
loan of HK$700,000 (2014: HK$700,000) advanced to
an investee company which is interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on 30 June 2015. In view of poor financial
performance of the investee company, a full impairment
was made in prior years. During the year ended 30 June
2014, HK$1,000,000 was repaid by the investee company
and a reversal of provision for impairment of long term
receivables of HK$1,000,000 was recognised in profit or
loss.
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“+= - BRHPYWE 22. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FURE SR Carrying amount at beginning of
the year = _
RIEEYEEE (M 1+75)  Transfer from investment
property (note 16) 506,700 —
NE Additions 37,747 -
B2 RITE A E Bank loan interest capitalised
(F&EEE) (note 7) 2,050 -
FERIEREEH Carrying amount at end of the year 546,497 =
AN SPTE L REES During the year ended 30 June 2015, certain portion of the
E-hAFXNA=THILFE" investment property of HK$506,700,000 was transferred
506,700,000/% 7T 2 & 5 &% & ¥ from investment property to property under development as
XEREMEEREZERTY detailed in note 16.
=,
RZZE—RFA=1+H K& As at 30 June 2015, the Group's property under
| AR T < %8 /3546,497,000/% 7T development with a carrying amount of HK$546,497,000
(Z— 5 &) 7B REPYE (2014: Nil) was pledged to secure a bank borrowing granted
BT EAAREBEERIREITRE to the Group (note 28).

E2E W m (HE=1F/)

—+=-GFE 23. INVENTORIES
2015 2014
Fi#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 75,434 115,130
F 2K i Work in progress 6,679 5,475
BUAL A Finished goods 136,370 137,317
218,483 257,922
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~+m - ESERIER

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$000

g 5l E Trade receivables 144,926 133,328
R R IR (B R Less: provision for impairment of

receivables (28,546) (28,274)

E SN GRIE — F 5 Trade receivables — net 116,380 105,054

AEE-RZRITEEINEE
BPZEE BREBREEF
HREFIZEFPZEEGRK -84
EFUREBEREER -AKHE
3 IE T HOR(E5& B WK TR M 15 B,
RIS - BmHIREA SR EEE
EHETER -

K& B MREBRREHE
SR A2 E P RWIE R

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers

according to industry practice together with consideration

of their creditability, repayment history and years of

establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit

limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly

reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as

at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of

BRI the sale, is as follows:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0-30H 0 - 30 days 45,901 33,837
31-60H 31 - 60 days 27,905 21,366
61 -90H 61 — 90 days 14,330 23,752
90H A Over 90 days 28,244 26,099
116,380 105,054
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“4m - EZEWEIE @) 24.

BB FE48 3P BEE SN - IR AR

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Save as disclosed in note 48.3, there is no concentration of

SEEXRERF DAL RSN
AEZRYGRIAEM S - WEES
SEER -

K& B MR BRAEE
RIBZHE 2 B 5 RYUGRIEZ IR

credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group
has a large number of customers which are internationally
dispersed.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at
the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,

oM is as follows:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
AN B TR R ORME Neither past due nor impaired 74,088 70,072
#HI0 - 308 0 - 30 days past due 20,765 18,561
# HA31 - 60H 31 - 60 days past due 10,516 6,705
@ Hi61 - 90H 61 — 90 days past due 2,329 4,223
#HI91 - 1808 91 - 180 days past due 8,348 4,230
# H§181 — 365 H 181 — 365 days past due 38 810
#HA365H A Over 365 days past due 296 453
116,380 105,054

BE R TR ORI 2 B 5 R
BB 54 AT B R
TRES:

EEHMERREZ B S EKFIE
WhERENEEARFENRT
BZTRAEP REBELR
EEERE BRNEEERLE
EXEH BERIDRETE2H
Yol - (R b 48 75 L ok S A R
ERE AEEYERD S
BRBUE 2B SRR FE
ERmEE R EMBEET

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements in respect of trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired.
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]

—+m - BSEWERE &) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
B 5 W EIE 2R E RSB Th{E Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
BERCs  RIEFREBR A recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
Ol 5% 8 5 EWGIE 2 e By - satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
FLRIBRAT REBESEEZR case the impairment loss is written off against trade
B 5 MR IEME - B 5 B YK receivables directly. The movement in the provision for
B EREE 2 SEHIT impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
FEEER Balance at beginning of the year 28,274 27,825
BRI EREE Impairment losses recognised 401 542
M ZERR Exchange difference (129) 89
AR Amount written off - (182)
FRER Balance at end of the year 28,546 28,274

REREEH AEE2EHE
YR IR IR M8 ) Ko B2 78 B R BE TE JRL
18- ERIRE 2 B 2 EWRIE S
RERYBENRZIES -

RAREEFRA RBREBEH
TERIR —F AR E 2 & 5 EIGK
B A HEEERESET RS
RER ARZEERBNER
A 51 B o

At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of trade receivables which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception at the reporting date.
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“+5 - UAFEEFANER 25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ZEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2015 2014
F#E T FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

BB LEMRAZ S &mE Listed equity securities in Hong Kong,

at market value 6,026 14,309

ETRABHZATFENIZRZER Fair value of the listed equity securities have been

RExE BB RIS m determined by reference to their quoted market prices at the
BIRERE - reporting date in an active market.

RAFERABR EREEER Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

FEREMBERAKLEEB—E presented within the section on operating activities as part

2 AEEESEE s —FH - of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement

of cash flows.

AEEFABRZEREEZ Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
A$fﬁ'§é§bai‘)\?ﬁﬁﬁWZE1ﬁ%& profit or loss are recorded in other operating income in
A o profit or loss.
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RN -HERREER 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(o))

RE PR FEEEATED

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e MRITER Cash and bank balances 55,641 78,124

RITASLE BRITHERNER
HUZE)FIE.

AREMEERR BITHESZA
FEEEFEMEEIES NS
2 -AREBREREREIE-

RZE—AFANA=+H &&E
BEUAARE(TARE]EEZ
IR & MIR1T 45 88 49 466,803,000
BT (ZZ—W4F : 6,943,00078
JL)  BEFIAD T A B AR
ZIRITHEF LR - AR
FAEHR LR B - RiEHE
AR SN Il (6 171 R A B ~ 5 B
REEEERE ASEARB
BEREREITINEZEIS 2 RITHEA
R H IR RN -

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounting
to approximately HK$6,803,000 (2014: HK$6,943,000),
which were deposits with banks in Mainland China or held
in hand. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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“t+t - BESEMNRE 27. TRADE PAYABLES
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
B S e A Trade payables 140,397 135,354
B SREMNFIEZ EEHRRERERE The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
> [B] 4 FE 7 BT 15 5 2 16 3Kk i B terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
B RS HE NEERIEZE trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
FHHZE ZENFKIBZ KRR D on the invoice dates, is as follows:
Mo
2015 2014
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0-30H 0 — 30 days 62,313 43,621
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 29,121 35,866
61 -90H 61 — 90 days 13,978 19,021
90H Ak Over 90 days 34,985 36,846
140,397 135,354
BoEMNZHBERHES - Trade payables are short term in nature and hence, the
It EERRE FENFIEZ R directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables are
HeRmEEAFEABE - considered to approximate to their fair values.
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PARS RS BT

o]

Z+)\ - RITEX

RITEFREMSBEZOMAT

28. BANK LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as

follows:

2015 2014
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
mENBE Current liabilities
ER—FREERZ Portion of loans from banks due
RITERE S for repayment within one year
— B ER — Guaranteed 59,388 77,425
—BHRRRBEER — Secured and guaranteed 408,098 125,000
467,486 202,425
AR —FREENHE Portion of loans from banks due
BEERE 2 for repayment after one year
RITERHD which contain a repayable on
demand clause
—BER — Guaranteed 1,148 4,601
—EERRBER — Secured and guaranteed - 204,100
1,148 208,701
468,634 411,126
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—+I/\ - SRITER @) 28. BANK LOANS (continved)
RZZE—RFANA=FH" R At 30 June 2015, the bank loans were scheduled to repay as
ENFHERENT follows:

2015 2014
FiET FET
HK$000 HK$000
RITERK Bank loans:
AR—FANER Repayable within one year 467,486 202,425
BERE_FEE Repayable in the second year 1,148 207,340
BERE=ZFRTF Repayable in the third to fifth year,
(BRRERME)ESR inclusive = 1,361
468,634 411,126
FESRBEHABERIBREEI L The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
KEHAEYE B T EAIR dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
ERBRIEX 2 E - of any repayment on demand clause.
RZZE—RER_T—MNF~H At 30 June 2015 and 2014, the Group's banking facilities
:‘f’ EI ’ ZIS%EZ%ETTEE BLE were secured/guaranteed by the followings:
B NFIIE B R HBR
(a) N & R ® E % (a legal charges over the Group’s investment
446,040,000/ 7L (== property with carrying values of approximately
—PH4 : 581,000,000/ HK$446,040,000 (2014: HK$581,000,000) (note
T0) 2R B HE 2 ETER 16);
0 (BEE+77) ¢
by =& & R ® E % (b) legal charges over the Group's property under
546,497,000/ L (== development with carrying values of approximately
—HFECE)ZERT HK$546,497,000 (2014 Nil) (note 22);
Mz EE MR (&
—+=):
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o

—+I)\ - SRITEFR @)

RZE—RAFR_FT—NFEN
A=+8 A&EBZRTEER
B THEB EREER:
(%)

(0  BEBEME@E&bFLE
BMERERTMEZMA
& R HEMSIA:

=X B KEAMEBE LD
16,357,000 T (==&
— P04 :18,166,000/%8
TT)ZHELIRIEFZ
VEE R (MFsE+m)

e AEEBK@EMELY
1,377,000 L (=&
— PO 4E : 1,413,000 7T )
Z T AR 2 AT R
(MzE+5) :

(f) X N @\ & ML OZ
694,248,000/ 7T (==&
—PU4: 577,500,0005
TT) R AER

(@ AAT-BEEREHE
ARZEBB: R

(h HHEREFRAEIREE
AR RITERE KT E
&

REB BT EZRITER
466,736,000 0 (= — WM
£ : 402,941,000 7T ) Z % B 4F
RN F1.24%%2E393% (==
—PO4F : 1.46%E2.46% ) - AR
4R 17 B 501,898,000 7T ( —
T —[O4F : 8,185,000/ 7T ) 2 /¥
BFEHEAB6.38% (—ZZT—M
F:7%)

28.

BANK LOANS (continued)

At 30 June 2015 and 2014, the Group's banking facilities
were secured/guaranteed by the followings: (continued)

assignment of rental and sales proceeds over
the investment property and property under
development in note (a) and (b);

legal charges over the Group's leasehold land and
buildings with carrying values of approximately
HK$16,357,000 (2014: HK$18,166,000) (note 14);

legal charges over the Group’s land use rights with
carrying values of approximately HK$1,377,000
(2014: HK$1,413,000) (note 15);

corporate guarantees of HK$694,248,000 (2014:
HK$577,500,000) executed by the Company;

ordinary shares of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company; and

guarantees from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, under the Special
Loan Guarantee.

The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
HK$466,736,000 (2014: HK$402,941,000) have floating
interest rates ranging from 1.24% to 3.93% (2014:
1.46% to 2.46%) per annum. The RMB bank loans of
HK$1,898,000 (2014: HK$8,185,000) have floating interest
rates at 6.38% (2014: 7%) per annum.
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“t+Ah - mEHEEKE 29. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES
AEBRGHFBREEBHAENS The Group leases motor vehicles for its normal operating
B -R-_ZE—RE~NA=FTH" business. As at 30 June 2015, the total future minimum
RIERERE 2 RREEBEER lease payments under finance leases and their present values
AR ERENT : were as follows:

2015 2014

RIRAE RIRAE REAE REHE
AFRBRE S IFAE R

Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments

FET Fi#x TET TRAT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000

—FR Within one year 359 a1 212 238
—FHEMER After one year but within two years 1,070 1,143 345 376
1,429 1,564 557 614
B R RF SR A% Less: Total future interest expenses = (135) = (57)
HEEKRE Present value of lease obligations 1,429 1,429 557 557
=+ - EEELRFKIE 30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
2015 2014
Fi#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
i p=Ri Current liabilities

FEFREE R R ZE (KisE@))  Due to related companies (note (a)) 3,099 2,330

ERBEE Non-current liabilities
FERTRA:E A RIZIE (MiFE(b))  Due to related companies (note (b)) 82,161 76,774
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=+ BHREARNKIEA

(&

(a)

ESRERAIRIEARER
K% B H 443,000
ot (ZZ — M4 : 441,000
BILIR_T—FWNA
—+—HB(ZE—mE: =
T—RFWNA=-1+—H)Z
HA{E & + 1,897,000/ 7T (=
= — 04 : 1,889,000/ )
RZZT—R"FERA=+AH
(ZZE—M&E: _T—AF
AAZ+AB)RHEER
759,000 LR =T —hF+
A+ ZRHIHBER (=
—POEF ) o

RZE—mEAA=Z+=
H —HEEAIAAK—=F
&5 A RE27,250,0007T
(182 134,313,000% 7T) &
EEZIHHBAEBEE T
—+tFERA=+—H -EE
B2 ATEEREE 2 #
HEA A ZBEHN =
T-—ENA=-F+=ZAH
I & 75 )5 8 Ik 3,880,000
Be LS EEEE
WHHEBEREE T —MF
ANA=ZTRHIEFEEEETF
TR BT —MRERA AR
18 2 BR T & ¥830,632,000/%
ot (ZZ—PO4 : 28,688,000
BIL)REER 22 RR
—E—+tHFAA=+—H
(ZZE—M&E: —_T—+F
AA=+—RH)FHEE-
HIFmeBEHRAMBE
F%E6.15% (=T — M F
6.15% )5t & o

Notes:

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continuec)

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured and
interest-free, of which an amount of HK$443,000 (2014:
HK$441,000) is due for repayment on 21 April 2016
(2014: 21 April 2015), an amount of HK$1,897,000 (2014:
HK$1,889,000) is due for repayment on 26 May 2016
(2014: 26 May 2015) and an amount of HK$759,000 is
due for repayment on 22 July 2015 (2014: Nil).

On 23 June 2014, a related company renewed the
maturity date of the debt due of the principal amount of
RMB27,250,000 (equivalent to HK$34,313,000) to 31 May
2017. Gain on the debt extinguishment of HK$3,880,000
was resulted from the difference between fair value of the
renewed debt and amortised costs of the original debt on
23 June 2014. The gain on debt extinguishment of the
said amount was then recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2014. The carrying amount of
the amount due to a related company of HK$30,632,000
(2014: HK$28,688,000) is unsecured, interest-free and due
for repayment on 31 May 2017 (2014: 31 May 2017). Its
carrying amount was calculated using a market interest rate
of 6.15% (2014: 6.15%) per annum.
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=+ - BAREARE
(%)

Hizt: (%)
(O

RZE—=F+=-A=+
H - 338 2 alFamous Keyi#%
— S K4 858,170,000/ 7T
RN A B B EMMSEE 5
(MM =+ (a)sFut) 2 7
IR E £ 2 FEE 2 5
HAE—PERE_T—+
F=RA=t—H-FEMEHE
A FAE R REIR 2 B HAK
AEZ ZEERN T —=
F+ZAZ+REBRERSE
18 Y %58,869,00078 7T ° | it
CHEZEBIEREER
RIEZBAEAR L ERE
% B8 A A Jh R AR AR 3R
BRIE T R ARRFH - AR A
TEERE LI AZEEA
RIZE=HEA A BN —H
BMEARREZEASE
51,529,000/ L (=& — XM
4 1 48,086,00078 T ) A& K
W R MR _E—+F=
A=+—R(ZF—mF: =
T—+FE=ZA=+—H)F
HEE -HEEmSBEHEA
MIBFEFET 7% & -

=Et+—TEEMIA

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continuec)

Notes: (continued)
(b) (continued)

On 20 December 2013, Famous Key, a related company,
further renewed the maturity date of the debt due of
the principal amount of HK$58,170,000 to 31 March
2017, which was originally arisen from a convertible note
in connection to the acquisition of shares of MMS as
detailed in note 20(a). Gain on debt extinguishment of
HK$8,869,000 was resulted from the difference between
fair value of the renewed debt and amortised costs
of the original debt on 20 December 2013. The gain
on debt extinguishment of the said amount was then
treated as a deemed capital contribution from the related
company, which was ultimately held by Dr. Chan, the
controlling shareholder. Dr. Chan, an executive director
of the Company, was also a beneficial owner of this
related company. The carrying amount of the amount
due to a related company of HK$51,529,000 (2014:
HK$48,086,000) was unsecured, interest-free and due for
repayment on 31 March 2017 (2014: 31 March 2017). lts
carrying amount was calculated using a market interest rate
of 7.17% per annum.

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

2015 2014

FiET FET

HK$'000 HK$°000

REIEEEH Forward currency contracts 16 =

RZZ-—AF A=1TH &M As at 30 June 2015, the forward currency contracts were

BEBEONRENE R—FR denominated in British Pounds and maturity was less than
FHR -

one year.
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=+ AR ER 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE

O
Ny

iU 8% Big Bonus Limited &2 &
Mt &) (#:#8 [ Big Bonus&e
B ) T 2 TR EE

RZZBEZAF+—AZ+TH &K
X 7] E2Benefit Well Investments
Limited ( [Benefit Well | » —F& %
RBEZHESHMEKLIZER
AR HRELIMEEZEES)
AIVEERZE ([EEHE]) -
LAY BEBig Bonus&k & 2 100%E,
1T BE AN K Benefit Well T e £
Z B HE 7K ° Big Bonus&E @ = &
7RI B K BE R R E R
BEME - RIEE Bz kA H
RZZEZNF+—A=+THZ
e LR 2 AR
{& /5738,000,000/8 7t * #5 A IR
© X 8113,000,0007 7T & 5 1B
17 7N & #325,000,000/% 7T 2
AR EERE (TREREER]) R
317 A #£1,764,705,8800% & &
£6300,000,0007% 7T 2 KRB D
YR -RZEZNET—HA=T
B - 7K &) EdBenefit Well5] 2%
st ([fHRBE])  MEET R
EFE TR RGH  BiE%ET
Al fE Z ¥ F Tamar Investments
i 3EBenefit Well (#FE 7 75 17
&) °

Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Big Bonus Group”)

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“S & P Agreement”) with
Benefit Well Investments Limited (“Benefit Well”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Chan,
to acquire 100% of the issued share capital of Big Bonus
Group, which are principally engaged in mining and
exploration of mineral reserves in the Mainland China, and
the shareholder’s loan from Benefit Well. Pursuant to the S
& P Agreement and the supplemental agreement dated 30
November 2009, the total consideration for the aforesaid
acquisition is HK$738,000,000 which is to be satisfied
by cash consideration of HK$113,000,000, issuance of
convertible note with principal amount of HK$325,000,000
(“Convertible Note”) and issuance of a total of
1,764,705,880 consideration shares with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. On 30 November 2009, the Company
entered a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) with Benefit Well to amend and clarify certain
terms and conditions, including issuing the Convertible Note
to Tamar Investments instead of Benefit Well, as detailed in
the Supplemental Agreement.
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HE-_Z-—AF A=THILFE

=+ BB ER#) 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

Uk B8 Big Bonus Limited 2 &
Kt/ A 8 (#:%8 [ Big Bonust
B )Tz TRREE (&)

AR RIBIE T F1.5% 2 M 3
T ARBFERNA=THRX
1 g E AR ([#
MRz tn1)0.197%8 7T - WM ETH
HIREE3FEmE BB B0 &
TABEEERE R 2 REFHA
AR TLAE & 25 B 2 Al 2 AE AT
W AR R A BB AT S a0 Al
BERE  ERESREELRR
BERE 2 ANE RS 2100%
HE EZREEERAH(TE
YR B) AT Z F B o fid AT #2 A
BRI BDARARITEZA
28 AABREERERESEE
B R o

RZZE——F+A+=H &R
&) [A Tamar Investments% 17 2 &5
BAR-ZT—NF+A+—H 2
FE 4127,619,00078 7T 2 7] #2
PR ZE - 1E A UEEBIg BonustkE
ZEDRE - AIRBREBRN =T
——F+A+-BZAFEIH
B HE AL E DR RSB AT
ERAR ([FRFFE])ETHE
(& o

THRREREEHRIR T ——
F+A+=ZBZAFETIHRF
HERAMRBSREETE
FRRFRER/5.437%  HTET
BE5 2 AFETIRPFIBER
U B#Big BonustE B & B K& A
EHHRA IR EE EEXG
B-ARER ATFEBEAAE
Hoz A FERMz =8 (EE
A A AT RRERERARE
ZIRRRHE) 5T AR R AE = B VE AT
BRREEEREE-

Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Big Bonus Group”) (continued)

The Convertible Note was issued at interest rate of 1.5%
per annum, payable in arrears on 30 June in each year,
at a conversion price of HK$0.19 per conversion share
("Conversion Shares”) which will be mature 3 years from
the date of the issue. At any time after the date of the issue
of the Convertible Note and before the fifth business day
before the date of maturity, the Company may redeem all
or part of the Convertible Note at a price being equal to
100% of the face value of the part of the principal amount
of the Convertible Note proposed to be redeemed together
with interest accrued thereon up to and excluding the date
of redemption. If and to the extent that there shall be any
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Note at
the date of maturity, the Convertible Note is deemed to be
automatically converted into the Conversion Shares.

On 12 October 2011, the Company issued the Convertible
Note, which would be mature on 11 October 2014 with
fair value of HK$127,619,000 to Tamar Investments as part
of the consideration of the acquisition of Big Bonus Group.
The fair value of Convertible Note as at 12 October 2011
was valued by an independent professional valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited (“BMI").

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible
Note as at 12 October 2011 was calculated using
discounted cash flow method by BMI and the effective
interest rate was 5.437% per annum. The fair value of the
derivative component was calculated using Binomial Option
Pricing Model on the acquisition date of Big Bonus Group
and as at reporting date by BMI. The difference between
the fair value of the Convertible Note and the fair value of
the liability component, represented the conversion option
for the holder to convert Convertible Note into equity, was
included in shareholders’ equity as convertible note equity
reserve.

ul
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CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Big Bonus Group”) (continued)

On 9 October 2014, Tamar Investments, the holder of the
Convertible Note, exercised the conversion rights of the
Convertible Note. As a result, the Company has issued
1,710,526,310 conversion shares on 10 October 2014.

The carrying values of the derivative component, liability
component and equity component of the Convertible Note

are as follow:
EEEEE aEHD BEDS it
Redemption Liability Equity
option  component  component Total

THT TRAT THT TET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

RZZ—=FtH—-HZ Net carrying amounts at 1 July 2013

PR 8 7 (9,874) (116,034) (125,901)
EsEH B HY (HEt) Imputed interest expenses (note 7) = (326) = (326)
in* Repayment during the year - 5,276 - 5276

ATEEE Fair value change ) = = (7)
WZFE—MEXA=ZTHR Netcarrying amounts at

—F-MEEA-HZ 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014

REFH - (4,924) (116,034) (120,958)

E&EFSRAx (ML) Imputed interest expenses (note 7) = (71 - (71
’\*EFJH’H@W AL Coupon interest payable classified

FENZEH S as other payables - 4,995 - 4,995
TR Exercise of conversion rights and

s A m converted into ordinary shares - = 116,034 116,034

WZFE—RERNA=+THZ Netcarrying amounts at
REFH 30 June 2015
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Z+Z-AHRBERER®) 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)
Uk B8 Big Bonus Limited % & Convertible note issued in relation to acquisition of
k7 2 A (#:#8 [ Big Bonust Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
B ) frET 2 BREE (&) “Big Bonus Group”) (continued)
RIE EMARA - B SEK— The above transaction constituted a very substantial
BIEFTEANBEFERBEER acquisition and connected transaction under the Listing
S BEHBEARTABMA= Rules. More details were disclosed in the Company's
T—ZEF-—A-tHBZAN circular dated 25 January 2010 and in various Company's
RARRDHINR-ZZE-—FF = announcements made on 11 February 2010, 30 April 2010,
A+—H ZE—ZFNA=+ 19 November 2010, 19 May 2011 and 12 October 2011.
B ZZ2—Zf+—A+tNB-
—T——FAATHhBEZ=Z
——FTATZBREZAER
wEE -
+= - MBERER 33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mBaE Current liabilities
—HBERAE — Financial guarantee liabilities 3,086 2,481
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
—HBERAE — Financial guarantee liabilities 4,115 5,789
7,201 8,270

RZE—ZF+—HAN\B &
ARAEIGE—EEELEZERE
MERRMEALASEAA
R #470,000,0007T (FHER 4
582,800,000/ 7T) Z R1TEE
BUE BT 1% - MIERTTIR BB 75
EREX - ERABARITERE
B HBR SRR ASF %A
RGEBRARB—TBATHER
FTERG BRE—FFBERA
MR- ZE——F+—ANBZA
ENETE-

On 8 November 2012, the Company, entered into an
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of a banking facility in
a principal amount of RMB470,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$582,800,000) entered by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee period
lasts for a total of five years from the date of grant of the
bank loan. This transaction constituted a discloseable and
major transaction of the Company and further details was
disclosed in the announcement dated 8 November 2012.
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=1+= BHBEREaE & 33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

0]

73%— TZ—mHE+A=+HB &
NRG—HEELEZEREA
WEB AR ASEA A
R #200,000,0007T (FHER 4
252,800,000/ 7T ) 2 REHMNER 1T
EERMERN S — M Wi
TIREIMBERE L - ERHH
BEIMRITEERME R L B HEAT
EHAH=F - ZBEXHHEXAR
RNE—BATEERS GH@E
—SHBERBHRAEZT —NE+
A=THZAEAHKE-

ERLs—HeEREZR
EMBAREESERME TR

TZWBER ANARE 5
BERENWRELEAHZAFE
B # AR #9,879,0007T (#H%
12,405,000 78 ) & A R #&
1,436,0007T (#H55741,816,000
B) B IER —HeghE
HE(ME+) AERERE
ENrEZERZEEASE R
W Dt S RBEEGE MBI E
ANEERATBEREE R
TEFIE L E He  MBERE
BEEERTENERANEHEE
NG

(continued)

On 30 October 2014, the Company, entered into another
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of an additional banking
facility in a principal amount of RMB200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$252,800,000) entered by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee
period lasts for a total of three years from the date of
grant of the additional banking facilities. This transaction
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company and
further details was disclosed in the announcement dated 30
October 2014.

In relation to the aforesaid financial guarantees granted to
a bank over the repayment of a loan by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of a joint venture, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts at the dates of grant of approximately
RMB9,879,000 (equivalent to HK$12,405,000) and
RMB1,436,000 (equivalent to HK$1,816,000), representing
a deemed capital contribution to a joint venture (note 19),
had been adjusted to the carrying amount of the interests
in joint ventures and simultaneously, the said amount
was recognised as financial guarantee liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Subsequent to
the grant dates of the bank loan, the financial guarantee
liabilities were amortised to income over the bank loan
guarantee period.
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=+ EEEREREZ 34. LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING

=N SHAREHOLDER
2015 2014
Fi#T FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
AR R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 153,060 95,037

RZTE—RAFEXA=1+H B
18 4 21 —£5148,000,0007% 7T
(=—Z—PO4 : 90,000,000/ 7T )
ZEX ZERAERRRZRE
FI%=1.5%5 2. - 590,000,000
BTN -_ZE—+tHEhLB=1+H
F|HA{E & » 50,000,000 LA =
T—+F+ARBRHES
8,000,000 TR =& — £ 4F
+TA=+—HEHEE(=ZZ
—PO4F : 90,000,000 LA =&
—tFNA=ZTHIHEE) -
B —% AR ¥4,000,0007T (=
= —PO4F : A R#4,000,0007T)
(215,060,000 T (= Z
— P4 : 5,037,000 L) )2 &
RMERELTRMN ZERA
EmEF SERR-_ZT—LtF
+A-t+ERA(ZZE—MmF: =
E—+E+A=-+HAB)FEE

o

B

i

As at 30 June 2015, loan of HK$148,000,000 (2014:
HK$90,000,000) is advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum, of which
an amount of HK$90,000,000 is due for repayment on
30 September 2017, an amount of HK$50,000,000 is
due for repayment on 5 October 2017 and an amount of
HK$8,000,000 is due for repayment on 31 October 2017
(2014: HK$90,000,000 was due for repayment on 30
September 2017). Another loan of RMB4,000,000 (2014:
RMB4,000,000) (equivalent to HK$5,060,000 (2014:
HK$5,037,000)) is also advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25
October 2017 (2014: 25 October 2017).

O
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N
(@)

Z+RIREHE (BE),/ 35. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
&R

LAT?%E’\#&i HEIERRZEE The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
BEERB(BRE) BE UK recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
RAFERBTFE 2 # the current and prior years:
WE BER
R it
ERER
RIREM
ATEAR
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment, & FEUT
land use REME HEHEE
rightsand  Accelerated Provision
piN mining tax for st
Group right depreciation  receivables Total
FET FET FET FBT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
RZZE—=F+A—H &8 Balanceat 1 July 2013 245,001 (260) (5,849) 238,892
i AR Exchange realignment 702 - - 702
REREBEZES Credited to profit or loss for the year (266) = = (266)
RZE—MEXA=+HE Balance at 30 June 2014 and
“Z-MELA—HAZ&H%  1July2014 245,437 (260) (5,849) 239,328
B X A% Exchange realignment 1,150 - - 1,150
WERBZ (ER) /MK (Credited)Debited to
profit or loss for the year (76,725) 91 86 (76,548)
RZFE—R&ERXA=+HZ Balance at 30 June 2015
2 169,862 (169) (5.763) 163,930
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=8 4¢ )

TIREERHRET 22BN
AR AR

(continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2015 2014

Fi#T FETT

HK$°000 HK$'000

RIERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 169,862 245,437
EIEFLIBE Deferred tax assets (5,932) (6,109)
163,930 239,328

AREBXEHREEBIBEL
141,049,000 &0 (=& — ™
£ 112,058,000 7T ) * ;2 =
BHEEARAREHEELEZSD
HEBZARZARER G
Fl o R A AT BE B AR IR FE =R B
EAAESRZERBATIES
B Bt Rp S EEERE
EMIBEE - APHABIEEIE
66,462,000/ 7L (= F — U4 :
53,896,000/ 7T) R E 2 =&
ZZF(ZE—WF:ZT—AN
F) (BEZF)2TRAHE
B o E fth R B) A T TE &S 18 AT B IR

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$ 141,049,000
(2014: HK$112,058,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$66,462,000 (2014: HK$53,896,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2020 (2014: 2019). Other
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

N
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=+ BRA 36. SHARE CAPITAL
BETEERANFERZ ZEN The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during
e the year are as follows:
2015 2014
LERYE LiakeE
Number of Number of
/i3 ordinary FET ordinary FET
Notes shares HK$000 shares HKS$ 000
AT Authorised:
SREAGOIBILZLEE  Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
REA At beginning of the year - - 35,000,000,000 350,000
EERAZ B R The concept of authorised
ZZ-ME=R=A%KER  share capital is abolished on
3 March 2014 @ - - (35,000,000,000) (350,000)
RER At end of the year - = = =
BETRAER: Issued and fully paid:
READ At beginning of the year 5,110,656,270 442,555  5,110,656,270 51,107
RZE-ME=A=H Transfer from share premium
BRMEERSEA account on 3 March 2014 - - - 391,448
RERIRIRZEEETRD  Shares issued upon conversion of
convertible note (b) 1,710,526,310 116,034 - -
TR ERERBTRG Shares issied upon exercise of
share options (© 10,000,000 2,084 - -

RER At end of the year 6,831,182,580 560,673  5,110,656,270 442 555
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36.

@) BN ARG (FBEDE
622%) ([ZEMIDR=-F
—ME=A=HER-RIE
FZIGBIZE13506%  —M A2
et A S ME(E © Ik - SR TERX
RZBDWER -ZERE
HEERNARE - RRZ
RO BRGSO R =F
—ME= A= HRBRER
174 (B i 2 (A R BR IS AX
RARREARZ —F D

E-_Z—NE=A=HiE"
B) A IR AR Z 3% & 01 514915
BERM N T—mE=
B=BRMRE 8B E KK
i BAREE A 2 5RIB X % (A
Bt 2= 11583815 2 8 14 & XX
RE -

(b) RBE-Z—RFA A=T
B FEEBRATBRERER
FHIEENME=1

© RBE-—Z-—AF A=+

AIEFETERBREZFE
£y AN

=+t R
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37.

AEBZAFEMBEFERHB
MERBE SRAERA DS
BRE5 -

HAb R SRR B A B2 BIh
R 2 R EERUEEIRE
bl E A RNERE MR R PR
TR HIERERC EERAE
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (the
“Ordinance”) came into effect on 3 March 2014. Under
S.135 of the Ordinance, shares in a company do not have
nominal value. Accordingly, the concept of authorised share
capital is abolished. The no nominal value regime applies
to the Company. Following the transitional provisions in
the Ordinance, any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account at the beginning of 3 March 2014
became part of the Company'’s share capital.

The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is governed
by S.149 of the Ordinance. However, the application of the
amount transferred from share premium account at the
beginning of 3 March 2014 is governed by the transitional
provision in S.38 of Schedule 11 to the Ordinance.

Details of the conversion of convertible note for the year
ended 30 June 2015 are set out in note 32.

Details of the exercise of share options for the year ended
30 June 2015 are set out in note 38.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the

consideration paid for the additional interest in the

subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest's share of the

assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement

of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the

non-controlling interests.

N
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H

=+t #E @ 37. RESERVES (continued)
2NN Company
TR THRBZE
BhEER  BRERR fif EakE Bk RB A @i
Share Share Non-  Convertible Capital
premium option distributable  note equity contribution Retained
account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AT FET AT AT & AT FET
HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
RZE-=FtA—-A 5 Balanceat 1)uly2013 391,448 - 273,606 116,034 5,735 175425 962,248
RZE-WE=A=A Transfers upon aboliton of
ERRHEEEER nominal value of shares on
(WE=17) 3 March 2014 (note 36) (391,448) - - - - - (391,48)
- - 273,606 116,034 5,735 175,425 570,800
E—GRRBREAEE2  Deemed capital contribution
—BEEAAMEELE  arsing from a related company
(E=10) ultimately held by a controling
shareholder (note 30(b)) - - - - 8,869 - 8,869
BANRDAERZAM  Recognition of share-based
(WE=1N) compensation (note 38) - 2114 - - - - 2114
BEEAIRS Transaction with owners - 2114 - - 8869 - 10,983
Epafl Profit for the year - - - - = 13,964 13964
ERRENRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 13964 13964
RZE-EERAZFAR  Balance at 30 June 2014 and
ZE-MELA-RzER  1hy2014 - 2114 273606 116,034 14,604 189,389 595,747
ERAHRZE (WE=T2) Conversion of convertible note
(note 32) - - - (116,034) - - (116,034)
BRURDAERZAM  Recognition of share-based
(KE=TN) compensation (note 38) - 470 - - - - )
iEERE Exercise of share options - (705) = = - = (705)
HEEAIRS Transaction with owners - (235) - (116,034) - - (116,269)
ERigh] Profit for the year - - - - - 12433 12,433
ERRENREE Total comprehensive incorne
for the year - - - - - 12433 12433
RZF-ZEAR=tH Balance at 30 June 2015
ba1 ] - 1879 273,606 - 14,604 20182 491,911
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NADIRGFEEABR— A NEEF
AAa] 2 EmismEs&&2.50
BITHIRZE0. 0B LT E AL 2 )%
Eo

=+/\ - EBRERE

ARElzBERETE ([Z5
BN -_ZE-—ZFLHA+=H
BEARRNBIBCRILE - %582 A
BEIR+F -

Exe([E52)ANBER
ERTIIEERA TR BEE
AR D BIRAD -

0) ARmzEfEE (&
mEEBERRE) SR
THRABREE &2
E=(BENT FRT
KRB IFHITESE) R
A BERAG S HARE
ZERRERERERZ
(ERCIRANCIE = NG S
AR ET (HEEER
E) K

(i)  EAEEES

RBEEVERUTZ&EE
OZN/NCT)i §7iS = £ 35 duel i g
BH(BEREXB)EBRPT
FRREXRMB2KLHE K
ARRRONERZZR OB
RAHAAEEXAERIAET
BREXRMER 2 FHRTE -

37.

38.

RESERVES (continued)

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising
on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company;
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group; or

(ii) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.

N
ul
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=+/\ -BEBiREE =) 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

N
()}

BEBALTUARERR LB
R tEZXBRNEREAE
AR 2 - MR LR
AR ARAAR R 1B T
REHRE - TEBEZ B
HZ = ERRE A P 1T 2 B D 4R
BT SHEAENRMBEHARED
BTN 210% : (AR F T
BB B 1TARANZ230% ° BRIFER
NEABRRPEBRAS EHE- &
AR ER2E A B 7R T
BR2EEZERE (BEET
18 R W ARTTE 2 B A ) B 37T
Ko T E8AIT 2 AR BIRD AR BT
BHAARAREREETRAZ
1% °

BREER AR EERRELS
DB AERS A e SRR A X
HRTMSEREZZ L AE  J5
M™MSER B &L B+
Fz AR -

RZZF—EFESA+A &AA
AIREZET EIMEE TESRE
30,000,00017 5 A i - 1T (B /A
FHR0.1388 L BRI A H
A 2 Y B {8 AR0.1387 7T

R-_ZT—WELtA=-+HHB &
RARBZAEME —RESK
t£110,000,00017 i A& ## - 1T B
BERI21B T - BEREHA
BRI 2 W AR (B &0.120/%8 7T

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date.

On 19 June 2014, the Company granted 30,000,000
options to certain of its directors, with an exercise price
of HK$0.138 per share under the Scheme. The closing
share price immediately preceding the date of grant was
HK$0.138.

On 25 July 2014, the Company granted 10,000,000 options
to one of its directors, with an exercise price of HK$0.121
per share under the Scheme. The closing share price
immediately preceding the date of grant was HK$0.120.
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=+/\ - BBRRERE 2 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
REE-_T—AFR_FT—NF Details of the outstanding share options under the Scheme
NA=ZTHLEFE %l TH held by the directors of the Company during the years
RARESHAE Z MARITEBRK ended 30 June 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
HZFIBFNT:
BRiESE
Number of share options
REN  REARY  REATE REX
BRiTEE At the Grant Exercised At the
REARA =) T Exercise price  beginning of during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant  Exercisable period per share the year the year the year the year
BT
HKS
2015
BEH —TmE “Z-PERATARE
~ATNA ZZ-WERATR
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
B e i3 “Z-MERATABE
~ATNE ZRIMESATAR
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
FER —Z-mF  ZE-REXATARZE
~ATNE ZZIMERATNR
Yam Tat Wing 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) -
BERE —TmE “Z-MELAZTRAE
tAZ+RB ZZ-MELA=+WEA
Wong Edward 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024 0.121 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Gwon-hing

30,000,000 10,000,000  (10,000,000) 30,000,000

2014
BRER —Z-mFE  ZE-MEXATARZE
~ATHA ZZIMERATNR
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki -~ 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
REL —Z-mE “2-MERATNEE
~ATHE ZZIMERATNR
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
EER —2-mE  ZE-MERXATARE
~ATHA ZZZWERATR
Yam Tat Wing 19June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024 0.138 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000

= 30,000,000 = 30,000,000

N
o
~
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=+/\ -BEBiREE =) 38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

N
(03]

RER ARBEBTELRE
AR T IR % 19 0.13858 T 1T 1F
10,000,00017 & #E (== — WM
Fo) RTESL LT ER %
% %££710,000,0000% & i % o
RTTEBE RS HE B 8 2 hntEE S5 A%
EAR0.2278 T (Z T —M4F:
) o

8 AT T R AR 2 DA 39171
EAR0132B L (T —M4F:
0.138/ 7T ) + M 1A AR 1T RS AR AE
ZINEF RIS X FEARIF
(ZZ—O&F:10%F) -

NERF B I8 B (B R F B
T(ZZE—MmE R AMFE)E
Az —_HHEEEEXNZE
EHAE ARGTEREE=Z
—RAER_FT—NFENA=1H
IEFERE 2 EBRE AFE-

During the year, 10,000,000 share options were exercised by
Mr. Yam Tat Wing, a director of the Company, at HK$0.138
per share (2014: Nil) and 10,000,000 ordinary shares were
allotted and issued to Mr. Yam Tat Wing accordingly. The
weighted average share price at the date of the exercise of
options exercised during the year was HK$0.227 (2014: Nil)

Weighted average exercise price of outstanding share
options is HK$0.132 (2014: HK$0.138) and the weighted
average remaining contractual life of outstanding share
options is 9 years (2014: 10 years).

The following table lists the key inputs to the Binomial
Option Pricing Model, which is valued by LCH (2014: BMI),
an independent professional valuer, used for calculating
the fair value of the share options granted during the years
ended 30 June 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

gl =R Date of grant —E—mE —E &

tAZ+EAH NATE

25 July 2014 19 June 2014

BB Share price HK$0.121# 7t  HK$0.138/8 7T

1TEE Exercise price HK$0.121# 7t  HK$0.138/8 7T

TEET R R (MizE@)) Expected volatility (note (a)) 61.00% 62.93%

BERRE 2 TERT R HA (PYsE(b))  Expected life of the share options 10 £ years 10 4F years
(note (b))

R b A (FaE) Risk-free rate (note (c)) 1.970% 2.038%

TEETAR B2 Expected dividend yield - 3.16%

(@) TAEHRE - AR N R R
H B #AT+F AR AR
Y i (B 2 JEE SRR o

(b) HERRtE 2 TRET SR A : TR
TR RAEHS H 2 B
ﬁ’)@(,ﬁﬁﬁzﬁ °

© ERRMNE: WBEEREL
SNEE S B2 B RS

Notes:

(a)

Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in

the past 10 years immediately before the date of grant.

Expected life of the share options: being the effective life of

the share options estimated from the expected exercising

time frame.

Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of

Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.
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=+/)\ -BERESE (w)

#%10,000,00010 BB #E (==
— P4 £E : 30,000,00015 f A% # )
RIZ L B HARNEF 558 - m LARR (D
RETR 2 F8 R B1470,0007% 7T

—ZE— P04 :2,114,0005% 7T )
EREBE_ZT—AFE~NA=1H
IFEEEERE R - 2 E B
TTIERRAEARRE 2 ARR (D AR 2
M 2D RIER PR
SR T AB IS -

38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The 10,000,000 share options (2014: 30,000,000 share
options) vested immediately on the grant date and the
respective share-based compensation of HK$470,000 (2014:
HK$2,114,000) was recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 30 June 2015. Such amount of share-based
compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
share option had been recognised in profit or loss and the
corresponding amount of which had been credited to the
share option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as these
are equity settled share-based payment transactions.

B UARE s AE B AR D AR 2 5

RR5 BRUBERAE-

=t -EBEBRARRZE 39.

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

—HhEA=1H FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE
2B AR R 2015
2015 2014
izt F#T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
N INEYNCIPR 2 Interests in subsidiaries 1,148,047 1,126,723
P ANl P - Interests in associates = -
RE&ERE 2 Em Interests in joint ventures 14,221 12,405
= B pE KR Long-term receivables = =
1,162,268 1,139,128
MENEE Current assets
TEFIA ke Rk Prepayments, deposits and
H A & WL FRIB other receivables 412 367
A N EEPNGIE S E] Due from subsidiaries 129,039 85,768
ReEMRESEH Cash and cash equivalents 440 61
129,891 86,196
mEARE Current liabilities
HENFIBENETEA  Other payables and accruals (6,118) (949)
FERT I B A R 5138 Due to subsidiaries (25,406) (33,423)
Al g ZE iR Convertible note = (4,924)
B EREE Financial guarantee liabilities (3,086) (2,481)
IR R Provision for tax (1,321) (1,370)
(35,931) (43,147)

N
Q
O
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Z+hA-EZBRRARRZF
—hENAZ1+H

39. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE

ZHBERRE 2 2015 (continued)
2015 2014
=3 FETT FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
MEEEEE Net current assets 93,960 43,049
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
R —EREE AN R Due to a related company (51,529) (48,086)
PR AR R HR A ,Zféf?ﬁ( Loan from a controlling
shareholder (148,000) (90,000)
HIEEREE Financial guarantee liabilities (4,115) (5,789)
(203,644) (143,875)
EEZFE Net assets 1,052,584 1,038,302
= EQUITY
[N Share capital 36 560,673 442,555
& Reserves 37 491,911 595,747
EEEE Total equity 1,052,584 1,038,302
RERES On behalf of the Directors
EE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
BiE Director
EBE Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
BB /) 3 Director
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P+ - B4 F)

40. SUBSIDIARIES

NZE—hFENA=TH £Z Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2015
MEARZFFRMAT : are as follows:
ML/ BRRRM/
AMREEHY BETRAFE KRR
Place of Particulars ERAML
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of TEER
&8 registration registered/issued equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
B A%
Direct Indirect
ERESHARAR &k EaR0ET 100 - ERESRITE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$20 Diamond trading and
polishing
Brangred Limited B LRRET - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Jewellery trading
CJ. (UK) Limited* g 1,000 SREE1EE 2 ERR - 100 HEEHHE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 each Jewellery wholesaling
BRERBRAR & LRR100ET - 100 #RES
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 Diamond trading
Continental Investment Company Limited &% LiR100,000% 7T 100 - RERR
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100,000 Investment holding
BAMHE (IF) BRAR EIARE B A IRA35,000,000% T - 100 HESMHRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
{BAIRE A HHARAR BB E1BI%10,000,000% T 100 - LEAMRERNE
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing and
wholesaling
EAtERRAR i LERVET - 100 ¥WERE
Continental Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 Property investment
Continental Universe Limited EBRTHE WREREEIZT LRk 100 - RERR
British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding
US$1 each
DCGS Management Service Limited Bk iR10,000,0007% 7T - 100 REER/REEERS
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Investment holding/providing
management services
BEREARAA i £ R50,000% 7T 100 - REER
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$50,000 Investment holding
Golden Creation Jewellery Limited ik £327%1,000,005%7C - 80 SEHES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1,000,005 Jewellery trading
RAERBERARA & iAR6,000,0007% T 100 - REER
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$6,000,000 Investment holding
Factory Limited

N
-
—
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40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMBL/ BRRRR/

M REE R BETRAHE KRR

Place of Particulars BEADM

incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of TELE
&8 registration registered/issued equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities

B A
Direct Indirect

AENSERARAR! mEAE BB R7521,000,000% T - 100 FRREREZRE

Mainland China Paid up capital of US$21,000,000 Mining and exploration of

mineral reserves

BARR (BM) ARAF hEARE BHZBRZA11,000,000% 70 - 100 BRESRITE

Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$11,000,000 Diamond trading and

polishing

IHmEYHRERRAR" NG BAIRRA AR 14,968,000 - 100  HEAMHE

Mainland China (ZZ-DmF: Jewellery wholesaling

AR57,050,0007T )
Paid up capital of RMB14,968,000
(2014: RMB7,050,000)

Patford Company Limited &b LiBiR10,0008 7T - 100 MERE

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Realford Company Limited 3 E3E%10,000% 7T = 100 MERE

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
EEREARAA &k ERRET - 100 #ERE
Well Friendship Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Yett Holdings Limited HRRTHS 100k ERAAEI T, EBR 100 - RERR

British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Master Gold Development Limited ABRAES \REBEIZT, LRk - 100 REER

British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding

R BEREEM 2N EE
-

FRBEBLEESEE
BRAERARSIERERZ
Hp B R RIEZ - FEH L
ERFERZMBRREE
FEAFGASEEEFE
HERRI2% °

BREEAT & BRIE
REE-

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the
Mainland China.

Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited
by BDO amounted to approximately 2% of the Group's
total net assets.

Limited liability company — joint venture between domestic
investors and Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau investors.
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M+ ME 2R ) 40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EERA ERAIAREIMNE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
NAEEERFEFANEES AR in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
SEEEFEZBRADBD EF for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
RE REEMHB AR ZFFE of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
SEYERANITLEK- the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
RIZZE-—RER T —NFRH As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, none of the subsidiaries had
=+8 WEBRRMEEITER issued any debt securities.
BE 5o
mM+— ARG E 41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REEHAR - BB mE R AR T At end of the reporting periods, contingent liabilities not
HBzRABEWT provided for in the financial statement were as follows:
2015 2014
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE—FEELERR Guarantees given to banks in
RITEERE MM connection with banking facilities
RITIEL AR granted to a joint venture 423,809 295,912
RZE—RFASA=1TH && As at 30 June 2015, the banking facilities granted to the
B Re g ERRITIEL R joint venture subject to guarantees given to the bank by
FEECEER ZRITEERME the Group was utilised to the extent of approximately of
2 &) A 49423,809,000/% T ( = HK$423,809,000 (2014: HK$279,313,000). Under the
T — P4 :279,313,0008 7T ) ° guarantees, the Group would be liable to pay the banks if
RIBEZ SR - WERTT AR a4 E the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
EHER AIAREEAAERR date, no provision for the Group’s obligation under
TERZET -RFEBEEH B the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
REEFRR/ TG LR REEEZ considered that it was not probable that the repayment of
EERZIBER Bt EmptAs the loans would be in default.

BREREHNZEEELRE-

N
e
W
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RI|E A AEEA TIIKRE

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At reporting date, the Group had outstanding capital

2 & AR commitments as follows:
2015 2014
FiExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI 4B KRB - Contracted but not provided for:
Y BB MR Property, plant and equipment 509 2,402
DERREMERERSD Properties under development classified
MEIBT 2 BEERYE under investment property and
property under development 35,176 103,227
HASEEEE SR Properties under development
FrEE{T DR RIRE classified under investment property
HETBERERYHE undertaken by joint ventures
attributable to the Group 45,716 160,208
81,401 265,837
= REHEKE 43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

AEEAEEHELFHERET
B MAEMERBEIRES-
HE (RRAAES)ZEES
RPPDEEBKTHER  HHH
—FE=F(ZZT—NF:—F
EZF)IME YAEERE
A AREESBREIEER
2 BEERI R E R EREE K

=5
A °

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
(including contingent rental) are negotiated at fixed rate or
with reference to level of business and terms ranging from
one to three years (2014: one to three years), with an option
to renew the leases and renegotiate the terms at the expiry
date or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
respective landlords.
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m+= - REHERIE 2
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—RHENA=ZTH &P

AREEEHEZBHER N
SERKKEREMFNT :

43,

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(continued)

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling were due as follows:

2015 2014

FET FAT

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—FRX Within one year 4,009 3,535
F_EZFRF (RIEEREME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 2,498 4,401
6,507 7,936

m+m-FAEALRS
BRAVERA BT HRES HLAt 3 AT IR
BES ARERENE THIH
BALRS
@ REE=2-HFAA
SHBELEEE RETR
BREREELLN N

Tamar InvestmentsZ fi&
5 K B 7 71,0004 7T

—ZT P04 : 326,000/&
JT) ° Tamar Investments

MRE LT ERES-

REBEZE-_ZE—RFA
=tTHLEFE H®—F
BENRELEERANE

fd 5,252,000 7t ( —
Z — U4 : 5,533,000
J0) cBREB L AZEER
AICESENRFEERA

go

REBEE_Z— ﬂi/\ﬁ
=+ HIEFE FER
BREREZEF EH/
FERBRE L 2 A B H
X 41,963,000 7T (=
T — P04 : 1,389,000/
JL) °

44,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group entered into the
following related party transactions.

(a

During the year ended 30 June 2015, imputed
interest expenses of HK$71,000 (2014:
HK$326,000) were incurred and paid/payable to
Tamar Investments, which is beneficially owned by
Dr. Chan, in relation to the Convertible Note.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, imputed
interest expenses of HK$5,252,000 (2014:
HK$5,533,000) were incurred to a related company
of which Dr. Chan is a director and key management
personnel.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, interest
expenses of HK$1,963,000 (2014: HK$1,389,000)
were paid/payable to Dr. Chan in relation to the loan
from a controlling shareholder.

N
ul
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M+ -FEAEANLTXZ G (&) 44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

d) FEEEEASIRMH (d)  Compensation of key management personnel
FARERARAY 2EE Included in employee benefit expenses are key
EEABRMBIETYIE management personnel compensation and comprise
B : the following:

2015 2014

FET FHET

HK$000 HKS$ 000

EHE S =T Short term employee benefits 14,352 13,913
BERL 21 A Post-employment benefits 496 483
VAR 57 75 B0 2 3R B Share-based compensation 470 2,114
15,318 16,510

() HibEMNZKBEKES (e)  Included in other payables and accruals, an amount
B BRENREER of HK$4,995,000 (2014: Nil) was due to ultimate
A 7] 3} 84,995,000 7T holding company, which is unsecured, interest-free

ZEUEE)  BE and repayable on demand.
B B RBRERE
e

B 5P+ PO (a) s P9+ PU(b) &% The related party transactions in respect of notes 44(a),

P9 PO (o) Fr st 2 B A =22 5 IR 44(b) and 44(c) also constitute connected transactions as

K ETRAIE T HAZERRE defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ZBER G o

M+A -EENRH T8 45. MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
BEHPZEKX IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
¥ @ OR CONTRACTS

BHE=t =+=-=1tmk
MO+ EEIN ARBRA
MBFEARERA DR 2 XK
RV BARN AR EFEENA
ERETRAEAER 2 EAE
RR 5 ZHHEH -

Except as disclosed in notes 30, 32, 34 and 44, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered
into or subsisted during the financial year.
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M+73 s ZERERER

i

T AREETHEERRS
%5

(@  AEEZRIBEERLR
EHERH BEEER
HEMEB ZRERE
/1,244,000 L (==&
—PU%= : 570,000/ 7T) °

M+t - HE—BHBE LA

RZE—RAF—ANLB K&
Em—R2BILE=FHEH
M Castle Macao Commercial
Offshore LimitedZ 100% f%
KRz KER1,500,000%
Jt ° Castle Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited# 1 & H 8§ 2%
BEWMT:

46. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

During the year, the Group had the following major non-
cash transaction:

(@) The Group entered into finance lease arrangements
in respect of an asset with a total capital value at
the inception of the lease of HK$1,244,000 (2014:
HK$570,000).

47. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 9 January 2015, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interest of Castle Macao Commercial Offshore
Limited to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$1,500,000. The net assets of Castle Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

FET
HK$'000
JE Wy — 1 [R) 22 BfY BB 1 Rk IR Due from a fellow subsidiary 138
T T Provision for tax (204)
(66)
NeEW—FER XM B A AZIE  Waiver of amount due from a fellow subsidiary (138)
RE BN EREE 2 KA Costs incurred by the Group during disposal 443
HE—RHRBRRZEE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,261
BIR(E Total consideration 1,500
AR & A Satisfied by cash 1,500
HERHEELEZESRAFERE:  Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
HE&RE Cash consideration 1,500
REE R HEREE Z KA Costs incurred by the Group during disposal (443)
1,057

N
-
~
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M)\ - BA 55 B B & 18 B 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

N
(0]

% BUR

AEEZETEZESRHTABRER
ARE BT HAZEEEZE
B 5 RWGRIA - H b UK
B RELREEH - BHEN
IR B A RIR R R B
A RITER 2 E R
REELREZER TTEESRT
A mERERE ENEEA
BIRIE R RIS 2 B30
MHERBERATRBRRE %
FeR TR ZFBRERAMER
B-EZEFeRTAGHEZRER
KRR 3% 5 BB 2 BUR SR T
XeoBEESENRERZER
B - DARE(R B2 05 & A S HETT

R e

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, loans to a joint venture, trade receivables,
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank loans, balance with an
associate and joint ventures, derivative financial instruments,
obligation under finance leases, amounts due to related
companies, loan from a controlling shareholder, financial
guarantee liabilities and convertible note. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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m—+)\ BB EEEIE B E 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBK (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
481 ZREERTHEEIE 48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities
REMBIRARFIZS 2 The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
FHESBEIRATEME statement of financial position relate to the
EXcRBENE-FE following categories of financial assets and financial
BIMIFE3.12 3. 15 A B i liabilities. See notes 3.12 and 3.15 for explanations
SRITHZ SN EE about how the category of financial instruments
HEE&r=- affects their subsequent measurement.
2015 2014
F#ET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
ERENE E Non-current assets
AEHEZSMEE  Available-for-sale financial assets 21,052 28,294
B FE WA Loans and receivables:
— B F—MAEMEEZ - Loans to a joint venture
=EN 530,200 401,400
MEEE Current assets
LAAF{EsF AB2zE 2 Financial assets at fair value
BRLEE through profit or loss 6,026 14,309
B R EWRIE - Loans and receivables:
—E S RENKFA — Trade receivables 116,380 105,054
— H b B 5k IE — Other receivables 21,460 3,979
—JE—FEAZME%E - Due from ajoint venture 155 169
KIE
—ReERREEH — Cash and cash equivalents 55,641 78,124
193,636 187,326
750,914 631,329

N
—
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N
(e)

KBR (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
481 ZRIEERTREESE 48.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
(&) liabilities (continued)
2015 2014
F#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERLERE Financial liabilities
REARE Current liabilities
R ATTE 2 Financial liabilities measured at
%Eﬁﬁﬁ : amortised cost:
E S EMFRIE — Trade payables (140,397) (135,354)
—ﬁﬂﬂfgﬁ HIE & — Other payables and accruals
et &M (37,647) (36,357)
—iRITEN — Bank loans (468,634) (411,126)
—JEfEAEARIFIE - Due to related companies (3,099) (2,330)
— AR RE — Convertible note - (4,924)
— B E AR — Obligation under finance leases (359) (212)
— B IERAEE — Financial guarantee liabilities (3,086) (2,481)
(653,222) (592,784)
UAFEFABRZZ Financial liabilities at fair value
PRIBE: through profit or loss:
—TESmTA — Derivative financial instruments (16) =
(653,238) (592,784)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
REENATEZ Financial liabilities measured at
THAGE: amortised cost:
— BB E AR — Obligation under finance leases (1,070) (345)
—FE{REE R R 58 — Due to related companies (82,161) (76,774)
—EREE — Financial guarantee liabilities (4,115) (5,789)
— PR IE R IR M 2 &3 — Loan from a controlling shareholder (153,060) (95,037)
(240,406) (177,945)
(893,644) (770,729)
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the
United Kingdom and the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HKS$, United States dollars
(“US$"), British Pounds, Canadian Dollars
(“CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies
of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China to
which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments
including available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and derivative financial
instruments which are denominated in US$,
Euro, British Pounds, CAD and Philippines
Pesos. During the years, the Group did not
have foreign currency hedging policy but
management continuously monitors the
foreign exchange exposure.

N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R &Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE_Z-—NFA=THILFE

N
N

M+ )\ BB EEEIE B E
RBUR (#)

48.2 TR (&)
() MR (48 )

TRPANR—-FT—F
FR-_F-HFRHA
=T BUAREERK
B RBINEEEE AN
ZEMEEHEZE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(1) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarises the

Group’s major financial assets and liabilities

denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency of the respective group

companies as at 30 June 2015 and 2014.

ESREERAG-
NFERTIR
Expressed in HK$'000
En B 3 mr FEEHZR
British Philippines
uss$ Euro Pounds CAD Pesos
RZF-1%7xA=1+H At 30 June 2015
EHE SHEE Available-for-sale
financial assets 7,753 - - 1,006 -
B SEWFE Trade receivables 98,012 1,143 - - -
ReRkBeSH Cash and cash equivalents 20,514 353 660 23 -
BoRNHE Trade payables (84,577) (89) - - =
PTESRIA Derivative financial
instruments - - (16) - -
BREER Overall net exposure 41,702 1,407 644 1,029 -
RZF-ME7xA=1+H At 30 June 2014
EHE s SHEE Available-for-sale
financial assets - - - 7,039 3,580
BoRNHE Trade receivables 83,065 1219 = = -
ReRkBeSd Cash and cash equivalents 29,118 1,738 469 846 -
BORNHE Trade payables (109,801) (137) - - -
BERFER Overall net exposure 2,382 2,820 469 7,885 3,580
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m—+)\ BB EEEIE B E 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

e — 3
RBUK (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
48.2 TR (&) 48.2 Market risk (continued)
() sMEEEE (&) () Foreign currency risk (continued)
B & T B T B As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
8 AR B TER = not expect any significant movements in
TTHABTLZERSE the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
EHEFRNENEF- analysis in respect of the Group's financial
EEZRAE BEBER assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
B ARE B A ITEHE disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
ZEMEERBESR sensitivity analysis does not give additional
B2 BREDN R value in view of insignificant movement in
FHERERSE BHZE the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
TR BT 2 EREE) date. The following table indicates the
PR WZEHRE approximate change in the Group's profit for
AT AR R RRIME the year and equity in response to reasonably
B TRERAER possible changes in the foreign exchange
HRE B HAAR S B AR rates to which the Group has significant
X &K R g2 N TE exposure at the reporting date.
KRB EES -
RNEE 2 F A &
Wz 7] g8 3R 2 BEAY
2015 2014
SRR HNEE %
L#/(TH) HERERNZ R/(TH)  HERETZ
Increase/ pe Increase/ 7a
(Decrease) Effect on (Decrease) Effect on
in foreign profit for B in foreign profit for R
exchange rates the year Equity  exchange rates the year Equity
FE#T FéT T FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
o Euro +5% 70 70 +5% 141 141
5% (70) (70) 5% (141) (141)
B British Pounds +5% 32 2 +5% 3 3
5% (32) (32) 5% ) 23)
mr CAD +5% 1 51 +5% Y] 394
5% ) (51) 5% @) (394)
FRERR Philippines Pesos +5% - - +5% - 179
5% = = 5% = (179)

N
N
W
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

()

(ir)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the
fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate). The
Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities
which are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss, or available-for-sale. The Board
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profiles and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.
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m—+)\ BB EEEIE B E 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

B BUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
48.2 WA (&) 48.2 Market risk (continued)

(i) IRAE 1S/ (&) (ir) Equity price risk (continued)
RZZE—HEXA At 30 June 2015, if equity prices had
=+ B WA ER increased/(decreased) by 10% and all other
A CRB)10% T variables were held constant:
Fﬁﬁﬁ@“%ﬁ%ﬁ%x
,,,,,,, Bl :

- AEBEZFRH - the Group's profit for the year
F &, Ok would increase/(decrease) by
4) #7603,0007% approximately HK$603,000 (2014:
It ( :E*EE - increase/(decrease) by approximately
#m, O L) HK$1,431,000). This is mainly due to
491,431 ,OOO/E, the changes in financial assets at fair
) T EE value through profit or loss; and
RARFEEF A
BasemEE
HIBEHAE &

— BRETALREE - the Group's equity other than
AHEE SR retained profits would increase/
BEZ EmEAR (decrease) by approximately
BEZAFEH HK$907,000 (2014: increase/
REE) NEE 2 (decrease) by approximately
Rz (R &I HK$2,406,000) as a result of the
SN #& 1 ORk changes in fair value of listed equity
4>) #7907,0007% investments included in the Group's
T (ZE W% available-for-sale financial assets.

# o, O 2)
42,406,000
TT) °

LB RE ST R This sensitivity analysis has been determined

RN mE BEHIRE assuming that the price change had occurred

REFHMET FE at the reporting dates and has been applied

ERERSEERZH to the Group's investment on that date.

ZIRE -

REEBBEFEN The policies to manage equity price risk have

%*E%?%ﬁf@ﬁiﬁ been followed by the Group since prior years

B R 2 B - I and are considered to be effective.

RBEZEBRAB R -

N
N
ul
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(iir)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank borrowings.
Majority of the bank borrowings are
arranged at variable rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rates and repayment terms of the
bank borrowings outstanding at reporting
dates are disclosed in note 28.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the profit for the year and retained profits
to a change in interest rates of +100 basis
point and -100 basis point (2014: +100 basis
point and -100 basis point) with effect from
the beginning of the year. The calculations

BASERE®RER are based on the Group's bank balances
HiFEZRITEHR K and interest-bearing bank borrowings held

HARTERTE
(EEBDHERHY

&) FIEHMERE

at each reporting date which are subject to
variable interest rates. All other variables are
held constant.

A&
2015 2014
FETT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
A= _FF100H 2, If interest rates were 100 basis point
(=Z—pu4E: (2014: 100 basis point) higher
100E2h)
F R4 T &R Net profit for the year and retained
S5 1 profits decreased by (1,941) (1,291)
A2 TN BE100E 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(== — 4 : (2014: 100 basis point) lower
1005 2h)
F R ah T &R Net profit for the year and retained
S35 13 hn profits increased by 1,941 1,291
RNEEBBEFEN The policies to manage interest rate risk have
R—EETEEME been followed by the Group since prior years
E kg2 R RS are considered to be effective.
ZEBERBAR

N
N
~
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.3

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount for each individual
account receivables at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Board
considers that the Group's credit risk is effectively
controlled and significantly reduced.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 31.0% (2014: 30.8%) of the
Group's trade receivables which were due from
one of the Group’s largest customers within the
design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of the
jewellery and diamonds segment.

Save as the aforesaid concentration of credit risk, the
Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number
of counterparties and customers. The Group is also
exposed to the credit risk of the contingent liabilities
in relation to the financial guarantee contracts
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint
venture as detailed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as
cash is deposited in banks of high credit rating.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m 275

For the year ended 30 June 2015
HE-_Z-—AFA=THILFE

Annual Report 2015 “F

B EMEE

m-+/\ - Eﬁﬁ%ﬂl‘x‘i*ﬂ BHE

48.3

48.4

BUR (&)
SEEB ()

AR AEERRARE
SREBFIEMAEZEE
[R\fg 2 — P LB
D RIRRE ISR E B
TR tHEE-

PR SE =+ —(a) P AF it
Z KB EWFRIRIN - AR
Bz &R EEMEANS
ERRIEMERETATY
EREA -

REBBBEFEAKR—
HETEERER YRR
Ekﬁgl%xZZf
RBEMRHIES AREK

T o

RBE R

REBE T RTINS
BoREEEITHESREE
BEAERE 2 Ak $%l
EERHE T B -
%%&%F”ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ
Eﬁ*$2ﬁi&EA”
B UARAREE 2 28R
#“ES WHERHAREK
RS REBZFE T
@F?ﬂﬁﬁFEZ@%

BRI R ETFERR
#)e

REBBBEFEAKR—
EETRBESHE A
REASBRELEER
BHESER-

TRETASEEHAE
s B2 FSRE 5
HAEARR o 22k IIRIB AR &
B AL /BIR EER 2 &
FHEZEHRURRE
mE (BEUELOFES
(W BFEE A Z)REBER
s AR R R E 2
FIEATF) i Am & o

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuec)

48.3

48.4

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from long term and
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as the long-term receivables as detailed in
note 21(a), none of the Group's financial assets are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group's exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

N
O
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48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a

repayment on demand clause which can be

exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis

shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period

in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if

the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights

to call the loans with immediate effect.

AHRER —ENE
REREQE —ERd BORWE
Total #EXHEE  More than
RELE  contractual Within 1 year but MEML
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
FET FET FEx FET FET
HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
RZF-AEXA=1H Asat30June 2015
FiTEEMER: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
B SEMNHE Trade payables 140,397 140,397 140,397 - -
EthENFIERESER Other payables and accruals 37,647 37,647 37,647 - =
HEREHRE Obligation under finance leases 1,429 1,564 421 1,143 -
RITER Bank loans 468,634 468,634 468,634 - -
JERBER AR Due to related companies 85,260 95,743 3,099 92,644 -
BRBRRR ST Loan from a controlling shareholder 153,060 158,065 2,220 2,220 153,625
886,427 902,050 652,418 96,007 153,625
freemas: Derivative financial liabilities:
fTEERMIE Derivative financial instruments 16 16 16 - -
BEM 2 BBER: Financial guarantee issued:
BEAEREE Maximum amount guaranteed 7,201 423,809+ 423,809 - -
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RBUK (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
484 REE£EMKE (&) 48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
ANREH —EpF

Remens —FRg,  EIRME
Total  RENRER More than

RESE  contractual Within 1 year but MEAE
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 2 years

TET TET TET TET FiET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

RZF-MERAZ+A Asat30June 2014

FiTEEMER: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
BHEMNFE Trade payables 135,354 135,354 135,354 - -
EthENFIERESER Other payables and accruals 36,357 36,357 36,357 - -
BAREHRE Obligation under a finance lease 557 614 238 376 -
THRERE Convertible note 4924 5,850 5,850 - -
RTER Bank loans 411,126 411,126 411,126 = =
EfBEARFA Due to related companies 79,104 94,813 2330 = 9,483
PRERIEEZER  Loan from a controlling shareholder 95,037 98,077 1,350 1,350 95,377
762,459 782,191 592,605 1,726 187,860
BRI BBER: Financial guarantee issued:
RAEREE Maximum amount guaranteed 8,270 279313* 279313+ - -
* WEIRITAREEKEEEE @ The Group would be liable to pay the bank if the
K AR B AR E R IR bank is unable to recover the loans.

TERZEE

No
w
—
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “within 1 year or on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis shown
above. Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

HERA-REREEF ARHAHEREXERE N ZRITHR
Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

AHRUR —FME
REHEEE —EnNE  EOREE
Total &EXHEE  Morethan

REL#E  contractual Within 1 year but MEUL
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years

AT TET TET TR THET
HKS$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

RZF—-AE7A=1H Asat30June 2015

ROER Bank loan 468,634 479,241 478,088 1,153 =
RZFE-MEXAZ1H Asat30June 2014
ROER Bank loan 411,126 423,146 208,300 213452 139
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m—+)\ BB EEEIE B E 48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBK (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

485 REESHBERRRERZ 48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
DNEEFE consolidated statement of financial position
LR BEDIRB T E2ME The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
ERAEZAFEMRZ into three levels based on the relative reliability of
FE2@H ABBE A ER significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
B #ZEcmEERE of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
BEIDA=EARBR - AF hierarchy has the following levels:
BEBZERNAT :

—F1E: HRAZEENE — Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
PR % 2 B markets for identical assets;
(REEFEE)

—F2E: RE—EWE — Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
LAGN - Bt B included within Level 1 that are
2 (AERK) observable for the instruments and
sk A (B derivatives, either directly (i.e. as
ERHEIT) A prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
ERZTAR prices); and
TTETAEZE
AE: &

—%F3E: WIHREAE — Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are
=7 G EUE not based on observable market data
ZITEZ&8 A (unobservable inputs).

B (JEEHER
ZEBAE) °

No
w
W
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position
are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

$1E $28 #3E Fob
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAET FEm FETL FETT
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(@) (PzE (b)) (Fi7E@)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (0))
RZF-REXAZ+H Asat30June 2015
HEEZSREE Available-for-sale financial assets
~EEB LM ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 8,062 - - 8,062
~FEBINET ZBRABS - Equity securities listed in overseas 1,006 - - 1,006
BIEEE 2 EW&EH:  Listed securities held for trading:
~EEB LM ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 6,026 - - 6,026
fTESRBTA Derivative financial instruments = (16) = (16)
15,094 (16) - 15,078
RZZF—-MEAXA=+H Asat30June 2014
HREEZSHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
—EEALEMZBRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 13,444 - = 13,444
—~EBINET 2 RAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 10,619 = = 10,619
BIFEE 2 EWES:  Listed securities held for trading:
~EBB LM ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 14,309 = = 14,309
38,372 - - 38,372
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(@) Fair values of listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their market prices at
the reporting date and have been translated using
the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period where appropriate.

(b) Fair values of derivative financial instruments are
measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

(a) The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3
use valuation technique based on significant inputs
that are not based on observable market data.

N
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

48.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level

FH)T 3 during the year are as follows:
2015 2014
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
AR ER ZEEEE#E  Redemption options of
convertible note
REA) At beginning of the year - 7
N EES (FE=+=) Fair value change (note 32) - (7)

RER

At end of the year - -

FR-F1ERF2EZH

WA EFEEE - TN

EEEEARE L EIE
—EUFE) o

M+ - EREE

AEBERNER 2 BEZBRTHHE
REFBREZEETRMERL
R PUXFEEBRERREE
RARAEe

AEEEEEEARE  THE
RERAEEEHAE - SR
SRABEEARE AEEARHE
A B R A Z BB A AR SRR
BEARBITHRD -RNAFE
FBEEE AEEMEENE
R BRERF-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

49. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors
are of the opinion that the Group's gearing ratio was
maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The
gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

EaELERAT:
AEHE
Group
2015 2014
Fi#&T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
mEaE Current liabilities
IRITER Bank loans 468,634 411,126
AR =R Convertible note = 4,924
FEfSEa:E A RI5RIE Due to related companies 3,099 2,330
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
FEfSBa:E A RI5RIE Due to related companies 82,161 76,774
ERRR R 2 ER Loan from a controlling shareholder 153,060 95,037
BIRARE Total debts 706,954 590,191
BIRe RIReER Less: Cash and cash equivalents (55,641) (78,124)
BIRFH Net debts 651,313 512,067
T ARRE Total equity 1,998,071 1,846,226
ez EE M B IRFRE Total equity and net debts 2,649,384 2,358,293
BEAMBLX Gearing ratio 24.6% 21.7%

No
w
~
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50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

51.

(a

Subsequent to year end date, 40,000,000 share
options have been granted to certain directors of
the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.245 each
subject to the terms of the Company’s share option
scheme. No share options have been exercised
since the grant of these share options. The details
of the grant of share options were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 July 2015.

On 8 July 2015, Master Gold Development Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the lender entered into a facility agreement with
Wealth Plus, a joint venture of the Group as the
borrower, for providing a facility in the amount of
HK$50,000,000. The facility is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed term of repayment. The
facility will be used as the working capital for the
development of a commercial property in Shanghai.
The details of the facility agreement were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 8 July
2015.

On 3 August 2015, Propway Limited, a company
beneficially owned by Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, an
executive director of the Company, as the lender and
the Company, as the borrower entered into a facility
agreement, for providing a facility in the amount
of HK$30,000,000 to the Company. The facility is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 2.1% per annum and
repayable on 30 July 2016. The facility will be used
for the working capital requirements of the Group.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2015 were approved for issue by the directors on 25
September 2015.
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Lot No

PHER 5518675 *
A3 B 5 18695 »
MBS 187 157 AR
REEH A AR
ML 187255 SRE &
HIgH S

Inland Lot No.1867,
Inland Lot No.1869,
the Remaining

Portion of Inland Lot
No.1871 and the
Extension thereto and
the Remaining

Portion of Inland Lot
No.1872 and the
Extension thereto

BREWE

e

Lot No

AHER 518675

M ER 5518695

I ER 58187157 BRER ]k
HEHBI AR

3 ER 5818725 BAER ]2
HEf s

Inland Lot No.1867,
Inland Lot No.1869,

the Remaining

Portion of Inland Lot
No.1871 and the
Extension thereto and
the Remaining

Portion of Inland Lot
No.1872 and the
Extension thereto

PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

g AR
Approximate

Location site area
(FAR)

(sq ft)

BEER23622425, 2,137

236 - 242 Dex Voeux Road Central 2,137

it #EA
LREAR
Estimated
approximate
gross floor
area
(FAR)

(sq ft)

32,040

32,040

i}

Use

EES

Commercial

A

Lease

term

=3

Long

Stage of
completion

ERES

Construction in
progress

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

g BAtRER
Approximate

Location site area
(FHR)

(sq ft)

BB IEHR2362242% 1,112

236 — 242 Dex Voeux Road Central 1,112

gt
AEEAR
Estimated
approximate
gross floor
area
(FAR)

(sq fo)

16,659

16,659

i

Use

Ax

Commercial

HH

Lease

term

=3

Long

Stage of
completion

ERES

Construction in
progress

fEtEm A
Estimated

completion date

~F-REAA

June 2016

fhstEREH
Estimated

completion date

ZZ-RERA

June 2016

K&
FE 1t 2

Attributable
interest of
the Group

100%

100%

*&EE
T {6 i

Attributable
interest of
the Group

100%

100%

No
w
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the respective published audited consolidated
financial statements, is set out as below. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

E RESULTS
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FET FETL FET FET FET
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
€ Revenue 730,900 868,103 949,215 955,712 973,501
BRATE B AR A Profit before income tax 65,158 51,971 87,660 215,020 35,387
FisRES,/ (%) Income tax credit/(expense) 76,179 (1,232) (1,303) (2,494) (5,646)
FRHFI Profit for the year 141,337 50,739 86,357 212,526 29,741
JErE S Non-controlling interests 234 (159) (510) 2,368 3,712

AREEE AEELET] Net profit attributable to

the owners of the Company 141,571 50,580 85,847 214,894 33,453

EE -ERERIFEHER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FE#T THT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BEE Total assets 3,097,489 2,866,683 2,758,770  2,634216 1,528,734
mefE Total liabilities (1,099,418) (1,020,457)  (973,362)  (988,598)  (495,596)
FEE G Non-controlling interests 6,130 5,896 6,055 6,565 3,665

2,004,201 1,852,122 1,791,463 1,652,183 1,036,803
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